
Committee Agenda   
 

 

1 

 
 
Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee 
Monday, 17th March, 2008 
 
Place: Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Committee Room 1 
  
Time: 6.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Gary Woodhall, Research and Democratic Services 
Tel: 01992 564470 Email: gwoodhall@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors C Whitbread (Chairman), M Cohen, Mrs D Collins, Mrs A Grigg, Mrs M Sartin 
and D Stallan 
 
 
 
 

 
PLEASE NOTE THE START TIME OF THIS MEETING 

 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be recorded for 
subsequent repeated viewing on the Internet and copies of the recording could be 
made available for those that request it. 
 
By being present at this meeting it is likely that the recording cameras will capture your 
image and this will result in the possibility that your image will become part of the 
broadcast. 
 
You should be aware that this may infringe your human and data protection rights. If 
you have any concerns please speak to the webcasting officer. 
 
Please could I also remind members to put on their microphones before speaking by 
pressing the button on the microphone unit” 
 

 2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 3. MINUTES   
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on 28 January 2008 

 



Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee 17 March 2008 
 

2 

(previously circulated). 
 

 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee. Two weeks’ notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 6. DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2008/09  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

  (Chief Internal Auditor) To consider the attached report. 
 
Copies of the Draft Internal Audit Plan for 2008/09 have already been distributed to 
members of the Cabinet Committee and a copy placed in the Members’ Room. Further 
copies can be obtained from the Officers listed on the report. 
 

 7. THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL MONITORING REPORT 2007/08  (Pages 7 - 24) 
 

  (Director of Finance & ICT) To consider the attached report. 
 

 8. RISK MANAGEMENT - UPDATED CORPORATE RISK REGISTER  (Pages 25 - 42) 
 

  (Director of Finance & ICT) To consider the attached report. 
 

 9. SUNDRY DEBTORS - POLICY & PERFORMANCE  (Pages 43 - 64) 
 

  (Director of Finance & ICT) To consider the attached report. 
 

 10. LOCAL HOUSING ALLOWANCE  (Pages 65 - 76) 
 

  (Director of Finance & ICT) To consider the attached report. 
 

 11. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number



Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee 17 March 2008 
 

3 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
Report to Finance and Performance  
Management Cabinet Committee 
 
Date of meeting:  17 March 2008. 
 
Portfolio:   Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services. 
 
Subject:   Draft Internal Audit Plan 2008/09. 
 
Responsible Officer:    Joe Akerman  (01992-564446). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:   Gary Woodhall  (01992-564470). 
 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 

The Committee is invited to comment on the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 
2008/09. 

     
Report: 

 
1. Following the establishment of the Audit and Governance Committee the terms of 
reference of Committees have been amended so that the Audit and Governance Committee 
is now responsible for the approval of the annual Internal Audit work plan, following 
consultation with this Committee. 
 
2. The officer consultation process on the Council’s Internal Audit Plan for 2008/09 has 
been completed and the draft Plan is being submitted to this Committee as part of the 
Member consultation. The Plan will be submitted to the Audit and Governance Committee 
later this month for approval. The detailed draft Plan document has been circulated to all 
members of the Council for information and comment.  
  
3. The Internal Audit Business Plan incorporates the proposed work plan for 2008/09. It 
will be possible to discuss with Members any topics which the Committee would like to be 
brought forward for consideration for inclusion in the Plan, either this year or in the future. 
Members may wish to note that a contingency provision has been made in the draft plan for 
investigations and other unplanned work, the nature of which cannot be predicted at the start 
of the financial year.  
 
4. There is flexibility in the Plan so that audits can be substituted in order to 
accommodate reviews of areas that are assessed as being of greater risk to the achievement 
of the Council’s objectives. Topics can, therefore, be brought forward for consideration for 
inclusion in the work programme during the year, although any proposed amendments to the 
Plan should be considered in the context of existing commitments and the criteria normally 
applied when prioritising audit reviews. 
 
5.   Progress against the approved Plan is kept under review during the year and any 
proposed amendments, once the Plan has been approved, would be subject to the approval 
of the Audit and Governance Committee, who will continue to monitor progress against the 
plan on a quarterly basis. 
 
Statement in Support of Recommended Action: 
 
6. To enable Members to comment on the draft Audit Plan for 2008/09. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



  

 
Other Options for Action: 
 
7. Not applicable, as the requirement to consult is derived from a Council resolution. 
 
Consultation Undertaken: 
 
8. The Corporate Executive Forum and Service Directors have been consulted on the 
draft Audit Plan. 
 
Resource implications:  
 
Budget provision: N/A. 
Personnel: N/A. 
Land: N/A. 
 
Council Plan/BVPP reference: Finance and Performance Management sections. 
Relevant statutory powers: Included in Business Plan. 
 
Background papers: CIPFA Internal Audit Code of Practice, Audit reports and files. 
Environmental/Human Rights Act/Crime and Disorder Act Implications: None. 
Key Decision reference (if required): Not a key decision, but still listed on the Executive 
Work Programme under “Internal Audit Annual Plan 2008/09”. 

Page 6



Report to the Finance & Performance  
Management Cabinet Committee 
 
Date of meeting:  11 February 2008. 
 
Portfolio:  Finance, Performance Management & Corporate Support Services. 
 
Subject:  Third Quarter Financial Monitoring Report 2007/08. 
 
Responsible Officer:   Peter Maddock  (01992-564602). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:  Gary Woodhall  (01992-564470). 
 
Recommendations: 
 

That the revenue and capital financial monitoring report for the third quarter of 
2007/08 be noted.  

 
Report: 
 
1. The Cabinet Committee has, within its terms of reference, to monitor expenditure by 
the Cabinet and other Committees within the framework of the Council’s budgetary policy and 
financial objectives, and to keep the Cabinet informed of the Council’s overall position. Thus, 
the third quarterly report for 2007/08, previously considered by the Finance & Performance 
Management Scrutiny Panel, containing the financial monitoring reports on key areas of 
income and expenditure for each portfolio has been included on the agenda for the Cabinet 
Committee’s consideration. 
 
2. Salaries monitoring data is presented as well as it represents a large proportion of the 
authorities expenditure and is an area in which large under spends have been seen. The 
salaries data is held by Service rather than by portfolio, although there are clearly some 
services that are linked closely to particular portfolios.  
 
Revenue Budgets (Annex 1 – 9): 
 
3. Comments are provided on the monitoring schedules but a few points are highlighted 
here as they are of particular significance. The salaries schedule (Annex 1) shows an 
underspend of £283,000. This is after the settlement of the 2007/08 pay award, and 
represents 2% of the budget. Most of this underspend relates to the General Fund. The 
position at Month 9 2007/08 is significantly better than at this time in 2006/07 when the 
budget was underspent by 4.5%.  

 
4. Income budgets are generally looking more volatile than in 2006/07. Development 
Control income at Month 6 was £70,000 down on expectations however due to a number of 
larger schemes coming through during Months 8 and 9 the shortfall has reduced to £32,000 a 
little under the £40,000 included in the revised budget. Building Control shows an over 
achievement, this is due in part to extra income for work done on behalf of other authorities. 
Land Charge search income is also down by £41,000 compared to a revised prediction of 
£57,000. Although both Development Control and Land Charge income are performing better 
than the revised estimates it is possible that the position could worsen again. 
 
5. Income from recycling credits is significantly higher than expected due to the recycling 
levels being achieved, however this is being balanced by higher expenditure. 
 
6. Income from car parking is lower than expectations particularly relating to penalty 
charge notices. Bed and Breakfast charges are significantly down but this is because related 
expenditure is down as fewer people have been placed in Bed and Breakfast 

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



accommodation. 
 
7. The Housing Repairs Fund also shows an underspend. Much of this is due to late 
invoicing by the gas servicing contractor.  
 
8. The payments to Sports and Leisure Management Ltd are again lagging behind the 
profiled budget this is due to a dispute with the November invoice. 
 
9. This report has been circulated to Portfolio-holders. An oral update will be provided to 
cover any additional comments or information received from Portfolio-holders.  
 
Capital Budgets (Annex 10-14): 
 
10. Tables for capital expenditure monitoring purposes (annex 10 –14) are included for 
the half year to 30 September. The tables show the major schemes separately with other 
more minor items being summarised. There is a brief commentary on each item highlighting 
the scheme progress.  

 
11. The full year budget for comparison purposes is the revised budget as submitted to 
Cabinet on 8 October 2007 and approved by Council on 30 October 2007. 

 
12. The process of profiling capital budgets has now been completed and all variations 
relate to differences between actual and expected spending patterns. 
 
Major Capital Schemes (Annex 15): 
 
13. An additional schedule is included that looks at progress on those schemes with total 
budget provision in excess of £1m. The schedule monitors the schemes in total rather than 
by financial year. The total cost figures shown in columns six and seven therefore relate to 
two or more financial years. The original anticipated start dates where applicable are also 
included and where this was not achieved a revised or actual start date is given. There is 
also some commentary on the schemes for information. 
 
Conclusion: 

 
14. There is still a degree of concern over the lower than originally anticipated levels of 
income from Development Control and Land Charges. Comfort can be drawn from the fact 
that the revised estimate takes this into account and allows for these variances to be 
financed by the DDF. It is also worth noting that the CSB budget in total is also expected to 
underspend when compared to the original budget. 

 
15. The Cabinet Committee is asked to note the position on both revenue and capital 
budgets as at Month 9 and the Major Capital Schemes monitoring schedule. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 8



P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

S
A

L
A

R
IE

S
A

N
N

E
X

 1

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
6
/0

7

S
E

R
V

IC
E

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
U

D
G

E
T

V
A

R
IA

T
IO

N
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
B

U
D

G
E

T
V

A
R

IA
T

IO
N

T
O

3
1
/1

2
/0

7
P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

T
O

3
1
/1

2
/0

6
P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

F
R

O
M

B
U

D
G

E
T

(O
R

IG
IN

A
L

)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L
)

(O
R

IG
IN

A
L

)
(O

R
IG

IN
A

L
)

£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

%
£
0
0
0

£
0
0
0

%

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
2
5
4

2
7
0

-5
.9

2
4
3

2
6
2

-7
.3

IN
T

E
R

N
A

L
A

U
D

IT
1
4
6

1
4
6

0
.0

1
4
6

1
4
5

0
.7

H
R

&
P

M
U

2
7
5

3
1
2

-1
1
.9

2
3
9

2
9
5

-1
9
.0

R
E

S
E

A
R

C
H

&
D

E
M

O
C

R
A

T
IC

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
5
3
0

5
2
9

0
.2

5
2
0

5
4
9

-5
.3

L
E

G
A

L
,A

D
M

IN
&

E
S

T
A

T
E

S
 *

1
,1

1
7

1
,1

3
6

-1
.7

1
,1

3
5

1
,1

4
0

-0
.4

F
IN

A
N

C
E

  
*

2
,1

6
1

2
,1

8
0

-0
.9

2
,1

2
6

2
,0

7
9

2
.3

IN
F

O
,C

O
M

M
&

T
E

C
H

6
5
2

7
4
3

-1
2
.2

6
0
6

6
8
9

-1
2
.0

H
O

U
S

IN
G

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
*

2
,3

0
2

2
,3

2
8

-1
.1

2
,1

6
2

2
,2

4
0

-3
.5

P
U

B
L

IC
 W

O
R

K
S

U
N

IT
1
,2

8
6

1
,2

7
2

1
.1

1
,2

7
7

1
,4

2
8

-1
0
.6

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
*

1
,7

8
9

1
,8

5
0

-3
.3

1
,7

3
7

1
,7

4
8

-0
.6

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
  
*

1
,6

0
9

1
,6

1
0

-0
.1

1
,4

5
7

1
,6

4
8

-1
1
.6

L
E

IS
U

R
E

*
1
,7

9
1

1
,8

1
9

-1
.5

1
,7

5
7

1
,8

0
7

-2
.8

T
O

T
A

L
1
3
,9

1
2

1
4
,1

9
5

-2
.0

1
3
,4

0
5

1
4
,0

3
0

-4
.5

*
A

g
e
n
c
y

c
o
s
ts

a
re

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
 t
h
e

s
a
la

ri
e
s

e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

.

Page 9



2
0
0
7
/0

8
P

O
R

T
F

O
L
IO

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

W
E

L
L
B

E
IN

G
A

N
N

E
X

 2

0
7
/0

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

0
7
/0

8
0
7
/0

8
0
6
/0

7

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
a
jo

r
e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

G
ra

n
ts

 t
o

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 G

ro
u
p
s

1
3
1

1
0
1

3
4

4
0

-6
7

-6
6

2
0
0
7
/0

8
a
c
tu

a
l

in
c
lu

d
e
s

a
c
re

d
it

o
f

£
1
8
,0

0
0

re
la

ti
n
g

to
g
ra

n
ts

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

in
2
0
0
6
/0

7
b
u
t

a
s

y
e
t

u
n
p
a
id

.
£
4
1
,0

0
0

re
m

a
in

s
u
n
c
o
m

m
it
te

d
in

th
e

c
u
rr

e
n
t

y
e
a
r,

a
n
d

£
3
8
,0

0
0

re
la

te
s

to
g
ra

n
ts

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

b
u
t
u
n
p
a
id

.

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
S

e
c
to

r
S

u
p
p
o
rt

1
7
0

1
5
0

1
5
0

1
5
9

0
0
.0

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

F
a
re

s
8
1
2

7
1
7

7
1
4

4
5
2

-3
-0

.4

1
,1

1
3

9
6
8

8
9
8

6
5
1

T
h
ir
d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

0
7
/0

8

B
u
d
g
e
t
v

A
c
tu

a
l

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

Page 10



2
0
0
7
/0

8
P

O
R

T
F

O
L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
- 

F
IN

A
N

C
E

&
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

&
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

A
N

N
E

X
 3

0
7
/0

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

0
7
/0

8
0
7
/0

8
0
6
/0

7

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

6
3
9

4
8
2

4
7
2

4
8
3

-1
0

-2
.1

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
s

1
9
9

1
4
9

1
6
1

1
0
0

1
2

8
.1

T
h
e

a
c
tu

a
ls

n
o
w

in
c
lu

d
e

a
ll

c
h
a
rg

e
s

fo
r

te
le

p
h
o
n
e
s
 ,

 w
h
e
re

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

n
o
n

C
iv

ic
 O

ff
ic

e

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
s

w
e
re

c
h
a
rg

e
d

d
ir

e
c
t.

T
h
e

R
e
v
is

e
d

b
u
d
g
e
t

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
m

e
n
d
e
d

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

.

8
3
8

6
3
1

6
3
3

5
8
5

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

L
o
c
a
l
L
a
n
d

C
h
a
rg

e
s

4
0
0

3
0
0

2
5
9

3
0
7

-4
1

-1
3
.7

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

H
o
m

e
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

p
a
c
k
s

a
p
p
e
a
rs

to
h
a
v
e

h
a
d

a
n

e
ff

e
c
t

o
n

in
c
o
m

e
le

v
e
ls

a
s

a
p
e
rs

o
n
a
l

s
e
a
rc

h
m

a
k
e
s

th
e

c
o
s
t

o
f

th
e

p
a
c
k

c
h
e
a
p
e
r.

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

re
la

ti
n
g

to
w

o
rk

d
o
n
e

b
y

th
e

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il

is
a
ls

o
d
o
w

n
a
n
d

m
it
ig

a
te

s

th
e

lo
s
t

in
c
o
m

e
to

a
d
e
g
re

e
.

D
D

F
it
e
m

s
a
re

n
o
w

in
c
lu

d
e
d

in
th

e
R

e
v
is

e
d

E
s
ti
m

a
te

fo
r

a
n
e
t

£
3
7
,0

0
0
 G

ro
w

th
in

 t
h
e

b
u
d
g
e
t.

In
d
u
s
tr

ia
l
E

s
ta

te
s

8
8
2

8
4
7

8
5
5

8
9
1

8
0
.9

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

re
n
ta

l
in

c
o
m

e
re

la
te

s
to

O
a
k
w

o
o
d

H
il
l

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p

u
n
it
s

w
h
e
re

c
e
rt

a
in

re
n
ts

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

re
v
ie

w
e
d
.

T
h
e

R
e
v
is

e
d

b
u
d
g
e
ts

re
fl
e
c
t

th
e

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
.

L
a
n
d

&
P

ro
p
e
rt

y
2
0
4

1
1
0

1
0
8

9
9

-2
-1

.8

1
,4

8
6

1
,2

5
7

1
,2

2
2

1
,2

9
7

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

0
7
/0

8

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

Page 11



2
0

0
7

/0
8

 P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 &

 E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

A
N

N
E

X
 4

0
7

/0
8

C
o

m
m

e
n
ts

F
u
ll

Y
e

a
r

0
7

/0
8

0
7

/0
8

0
6

/0
7

B
u
d

g
e

t
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
a

jo
r 

e
xp

e
n
d

it
u
re

it
e

m
s

F
o

rw
a

rd
 P

la
n
n
in

g
2

2
6

1
2

9
5

9
-3

-2
5

.0
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a

ti
o

n
a

n
d

s
tu

d
ie

s
o

n
th

e
L

o
c
a

l

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
w

ill
b

e
g

in
a

ft
e

r

p
u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
E

a
s
t

o
f

E
n
g

la
n
d

P
la

n
w

h
ic

h
w

a
s

d
u
e

a
t

th
e

e
n
d

o
f

2
0

0
7

,
b

u
t

is
n
o

w
e

xp
e

c
te

d
in

s
p

ri
n
g

2
0

0
8

.
T

h
e

c
u
rr

e
n
t

y
e

a
r

D
D

F
e

xp
e

n
d

it
u
re

is

e
xp

e
c
te

d
to

b
e

£
4

0
,0

0
0

,
in

s
te

a
d

o
f

th
e

O
ri
g

in
a

l

E
s
ti
m

a
te

o
f

£
2

1
1

,0
0

0
w

it
h

th
e

b
a

la
n
c
e

b
e

in
g

s
lip

p
e

d
in

to
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
.

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
l

1
3

0
8

2
8

5
1

3
1

3
3

.7

B
u
ild

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
F

e
e

 E
a

rn
in

g
5

3
2

6
3

4
1

7
8

3
0

.1

T
h
e

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
e

xp
e

n
d

it
u
re

re
la

te
s

to
c
o

n
s
u
lt
a

n
c
y

c
o

s
ts

fo
r

b
u
ild

in
g

s
u
rv

e
y
o

rs
fe

e
s

w
h
ic

h
is

o
ff

s
e

t
b

y

th
e

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
in

c
o

m
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

e
lo

w
.

E
n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t

1
3

9
9

6
9

4
0

-2
-2

.1
W

o
rk

s
to

c
le

a
r

th
e

P
a

y
n
e

s
L

a
n
e

s
it
e

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
a

n
d

th
e

re
a

re
n
o

fu
rt

h
e

r
c
o

s
ts

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
in

 t
h
e

n
e

a
r 

fu
tu

re
.

5
4

8
2

1
6

2
2

2
2

0
7

M
a

jo
r

in
c
o

m
e

it
e

m
s

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

o
l

5
8

0
4

3
0

3
9

9
4

2
3

-3
1

-7
.2

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
o

n
tr

o
l

F
e

e
In

c
o

m
e

h
a

s
re

c
o

v
e

re
d

w
e

ll
in

th
e

th
ir
d

q
u
a

rt
e

r
w

it
h

m
a

jo
r

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

a
t

S
t

M
a

rg
a

re
t`

s
H

o
s
p

it
a

l,
L

a
n
g

s
to

n
R

o
a

d
,

G
ra

n
g

e

F
a

rm
C

h
ig

w
e

ll
a

n
d

L
id

l
W

a
lt
h
a

m
A

b
b

e
y

b
e

in
g

re
c
ie

v
e

d
,

m
a

k
in

g
u
p

fo
r

s
o

m
e

o
f

th
e

s
h
o

rt
fa

ll

re
p

o
rt

e
d

a
t

q
u
a

rt
e

r
2

.
A

D
D

F
g

ro
w

th
it
e

m
fo

r
lo

s
s

o
f

in
c
o

m
e

o
f

£
4

0
,0

0
0

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
in

c
lu

d
e

d
in

th
e

re
v
is

e
d

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

s

B
u
ild

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
F

e
e

 E
a

rn
in

g
5

7
6

4
4

4
4

8
5

3
9

4
4

1
9

.2
B

u
ild

in
g

C
o

n
tr

o
l
fe

e
in

c
o

m
e

a
p

p
e

a
rs

m
o

re
b

o
u
y
a

n
t

th
a

n
n
o

rm
a

lly
e

xp
e

c
te

d
w

h
ic

h
is

u
n
u
s
u
a

l
a

s
th

e

in
c
o

m
e

tr
e

n
d

is
g

e
n
e

ra
lly

s
im

ila
r

to
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
o

n
tr

o
l.

S
o

m
e

o
f

th
is

in
c
o

m
e

is
o

ff
s
e

t
b

y
th

e

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

xp
e

n
d

it
u
re

 a
b

o
v
e

.

1
,1

5
6

8
7

4
8

8
4

8
1

7

B
u
d

g
e

t
v

A
c
tu

a
l

T
h
ir
d

 Q
u
a

rt
e

r
0

7
/0

8

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

Page 12



2
0
0
7
/0

8
P

O
R

T
F

O
L
IO

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 -

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
A

N
N

E
X

 5

0
7
/0

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

0
7
/0

8
0
7
/0

8
0
6
/0

7

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
a
jo

r
e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

2
,2

9
3

1
,7

0
4

1
,6

7
3

1
,5

5
9

-3
1

-1
.8

2
P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

to
th

e
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r
a
re

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

o
n
e

m
o
n
th

b
e
h
in

d
,

d
u
e

to
a
n

in
v
o
ic

e
d
is

p
u
te

.
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l

c
o
s
ts

o
f

th
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

p
ri
o
r

to
th

e
a
w

a
rd

to
th

e
n
e
w

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r
h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

a
llo

w
e
d

fo
r

w
it
h
in

th
e

re
v
is

e
d

e
s
ti
m

a
te

.

S
tr

e
e
t

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
1
,9

1
1

1
,2

6
8

1
,2

7
2

8
6
1

4
0
.3

2

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
1
,6

2
7

1
,1

3
6

1
,3

4
2

9
3
5

2
0
6

1
8
.1

3
A

n
in

c
re

a
s
e

in
th

e
a
m

o
u
n
t

o
f

re
c
y
c
lin

g
h
a
s

m
e
a
n
t

th
a
t

m
o
re

s
a
c
k
s

n
e
e
d

to
b
e

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
,

re
s
u
lt
in

g
in

£
1
6
1
,0

0
0

e
xt

ra
e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

.
T

h
e

m
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

th
e

re
m

a
in

d
e
r

o
f

th
e

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

c
a
u
s
e
d

b
y

a
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

ra
te

s
.

B
o
th

is
s
u
e
s

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d

b
y

th
e

re
v
is

e
d

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
a
s

D
D

F

e
x p

e
n
d
it
u
re

.

5
,8

3
1

4
,1

0
8

4
,2

8
7

3
,3

5
5

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

R
e
fu

s
e

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n

7
3

3
9

8
5

4
1

4
6

1
1
7
.9

5
T

h
e
re

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
n

in
c
re

a
s
e

in
th

e
ti
p
p
in

g
a
w

a
y

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

(£
3
8
,0

0
0
)

a
n
d

o
v
e
r

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
o
n

s
p
e
c
ia

l
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 (

£
7
,0

0
0
).

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
5
9
4

2
9
7

4
3
4

3
4
3

1
3
7

4
6
.1

3
T

h
e

ra
te

o
f

re
c
y
c
lin

g
h
a
s

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
,

re
s
u
lt
in

g
in

m
o
re

re
c
y
c
lin

g
c
re

d
it
s

fr
o
m

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il

th
a
n

e
xp

e
c
te

d
.

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
&

 r
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

6
9

5
2

9
0

8
4

3
8

7
3
.0

8
T

h
is

in
c
o
m

e
s
tr

e
a
m

is
v
a
ri
a
b
le

;
h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

a
re

v
ie

w

o
f

p
re

v
io

u
s

y
e
a
rs

'
in

c
o
m

e
s
tr

e
a
m

s
h
a
v
e

le
d

to
th

e

b
u
d
g
e
ts

b
e
in

g
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

d
u
ri
n
g

th
e

re
v
is

e
d

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

H
a
c
k
n
e
y

C
a
rr

ia
g
e
s

1
1
2

8
3

1
2
5

1
0
0

4
2

5
0
.6

0
T

h
e

d
e
m

a
n
d

fo
r

h
a
c
k
n
e
y

c
a
rr

ia
g
e

lic
e
n
c
e
s

is

v
a
ri
a
b
le

,
a
n
d

in
c
o
m

e
le

v
e
ls

c
a
n
n
o
t

b
e

p
re

d
ic

te
d

in

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
.

D
e
m

a
n
d

is
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

h
ig

h
,

a
s

E
p
p
in

g
is

p
o
p
u
la

r
w

it
h

ta
xi

d
ri
v
e
rs

m
o
v
in

g
th

e
ir

b
u
s
in

e
s
s

a
re

a
s

o
u
t

o
f 

th
e

C
it
y
.

8
4
8

4
7
1

7
3
4

5
6
8

T
h
ir
d

Q
u
a
rt

e
r

0
7
/0

8

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 13



2
0
0
7
/0

8
P

O
R

T
F

O
L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

C
IV

IL
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

IN
G

&
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
A

N
N

E
X

 6

0
7
/0

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

0
7
/0

8
0
7
/0

8
0
6
/0

7

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d

3
2
2

2
2
6

2
2
6

2
0
6

0
0
.0

O
ff

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

5
1
2

3
9
0

4
3
3

3
5
5

4
3

1
1
.0

3
} } }

O
n

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

4
3
7

3
0
3

2
3
8

2
3
6

-6
5

-2
1
.4

5
}

1
,2

7
1

9
1
9

8
9
7

7
9
7

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

O
ff

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

1
,0

6
2

7
8
9

7
5
9

7
7
7

-3
0

-3
.8

0

P
a
y

&
D

is
p
la

y
in

c
o
m

e
is

£
1
0
,0

0
0

b
e
lo

w
e
s
ti
m

a
te

,

a
n
d

P
e
n
a
lt
y

C
h
a
rg

e
in

c
o
m

e
is

d
o
w

n
b
y

£
2
5
,0

0
0
.

T
h
is

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

o
ff

s
e
t

b
y

s
e
a
s
o
n

ti
c
k
e
t

in
c
o
m

e
,

£
7
,0

0
0

a
b
o
v
e

o
ri

g
in

a
l
e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
.

O
n

S
tr

e
e
t

P
a
rk

in
g

5
7
6

3
3
0

3
3
8

3
4
5

8
2
.4

2

1
,6

3
8

1
,1

1
9

1
,0

9
7

1
,1

2
2

T
h
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

re
-e

x
a
m

in
e
d
,

a
n
d

jo
in

t

c
o
s
ts

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

re
-a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
m

o
re

lo
g
ic

a
ll
y
. 

T
h
is

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

re
v
is

e
d

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
.

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

0
7
/0

8

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 14



2
0

0
7

/0
8

P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

L
E

IS
U

R
E

A
N

N
E

X
 7

0
7

/0
8

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
u

ll
Y

e
a

r
0

7
/0

8
0

7
/0

8
0

6
/0

7

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
a

jo
r

e
xp

e
n

d
it
u

re
it
e

m
s
:

M
u

s
e

u
m

1
1

7
9

1
6

8
7

5
-2

3
-2

5
.2

7
U

n
d

e
rs

p
e

n
d

 t
o

d
a

te
o

n
E

xh
ib

it
io

n
s

a
n

d
O

u
tr

e
a

c
h

P
la

y
g

ro
u

n
d

s
&

O
p

e
n

S
p

a
c
e

s
2

0
1

1
5

1
1

4
8

1
3

9
-3

-1
.9

9

N
o

rt
h

W
e

a
ld

C
e

n
tr

e
3

6
0

2
3

6
2

5
2

1
8

6
1

6
6

.7
8

T
h

e
o

v
e

rs
p

e
n

d
re

la
te

s
m

a
in

ly
to

w
o

rk
c
a

rr
ie

d
o

u
t

to
re

p
a

ir
d

a
m

a
g

e
to

th
e

ro
a

d
w

a
y

a
s

a
re

s
u

lt
o

f

th
e

N
o

rj
a

m
e

v
e

n
t.

T
h

e
C

o
u

n
c
il

h
a

s
b

e
e

n

re
im

b
u

rs
e

d
fo

r 
th

e
c
o

s
t

o
f 

th
e

w
o

rk
s

in
v
o

lv
e

d
.

6
7

8
4

7
8

4
6

8
4

0
0

M
a

jo
r

in
c
o

m
e

it
e

m
s
:

N
o

rt
h

W
e

a
ld

C
e

n
tr

e
1

,3
0

9
1

0
6

0
1

1
4

0
9

8
5

8
0

7
.5

5

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t

c
o

s
t

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g

L
e

is
u

re
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
:-

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
L

e
is

u
re

C
e

n
tr

e
5

4
3

6
3

1
8

1
-5

-1
3

.8
9

E
p

p
in

g
S

p
o

rt
s

C
e

n
tr

e
1

3
8

9
2

8
0

7
8

-1
2

-1
3

.0
4

W
a

lt
h

a
m

A
b

b
e

y
S

w
im

m
in

g
P

o
o

l
4

4
6

2
9

7
2

6
0

2
9

5
-3

7
-1

2
.4

6

O
n

g
a

r
S

p
o

rt
s

C
e

n
tr

e
3

4
7

2
3

2
2

0
2

3
6

5
-3

0
-1

2
.9

3

9
8

5
6

5
7

5
7

3
8

1
9

T
h

ir
d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

0
7

/0
8

B
u

d
g

e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

T
h

e
D

D
F

in
c
o

m
e

fo
r

th
e

S
c
o

u
ts

J
a

m
b

o
re

e
w

a
s

o
ri

g
in

a
lly

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
a

t
£

5
0

,0
0

0
;

in
th

e
e

v
e

n
t,

£
7

3
,0

0
0

w
a

s
n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
d

.
In

a
d

d
it
io

n
,

£
5

0
,0

0
0

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
re

c
e

iv
e

d
in

re
im

b
u

rs
e

m
e

n
t

fo
r

th
e

ro
a

d
w

a
y

w
o

rk
s
.

T
h

e
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

2
0

0
7

in
v
o

ic
e

to
S

p
o

rt
s

a
n

d

L
e

is
u

re
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
L

td
w

a
s

d
e

la
y
e

d
fo

r

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l
c
h

e
c
k
s

a
n

d
E

F
D

C
a

re
a

w
a

it
in

g
th

e

in
v
o

ic
e

fr
o

m
S

L
M

fo
r

p
a

y
m

e
n

t.

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

Page 15



2
0
0
7
/0

8
P

O
R

T
F

O
L
IO

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L
F

U
N

D
A

N
N

E
X

 8

0
7
/0

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

0
7
/0

8
0
7
/0

8
0
6
/0

7

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
a
jo

r
e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s

B
e
d

&
B

re
a
k
fa

s
t
A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

3
4
9

2
6
2

8
5

2
5
9

-1
7
7

-6
7
.5

6

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s

B
e
d

&
B

re
a
k
fa

s
t
A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

3
7
4

2
8
0

1
1
4

2
7
1

-1
6
6

-5
9
.2

9
T

h
e

lo
w

e
r

re
im

b
u
rs

e
m

e
n
t

fi
g
u
re

is
a
s

a
re

s
u
lt

o
f

th
e

a
fo

rm
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n

in
n
u
m

b
e
rs

p
la

c
e
d

in

B
e
d

a
n
d

B
re

a
k
fa

s
t
a
c
c
o
m

o
d
a
ti
o
n
.

L
e
a
s
e
h
o
ld

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

A
d
m

in
1
5
0

5
4

4
-1

-2
0
.0

0

5
2
4

2
8
5

1
1
8

2
7
5

T
h
e

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

p
e
o
p
le

p
la

c
e
d

in
b
e
d

a
n
d

b
re

a
k
fa

s
t

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

le
s
s

th
a
n

o
ri
g
in

a
lly

fo
re

c
a
s
t,

la
rg

e
ly

d
u
e

to
p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

a
d
v
ic

e

a
n
d

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
.

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

T
h
ir
d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

0
7
/0

8

B
u
d
g
e
t
v

A
c
tu

a
l

Page 16



2
0
0
7
/0

8
P

O
R

T
F

O
L
IO

 F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

H
O

U
S

IN
G

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

A
N

N
E

X
 9

0
7
/0

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

0
7
/0

8
0
7
/0

8
0
6
/0

7

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

M
a
jo

r
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

it
e
m

s
:

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
 T

e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
2
7
4

2
5
9

2
3
9

2
8
2

-2
0

-7
.7

2
T

h
e

m
a
in

it
e
m

o
f

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d

re
la

te
s

to

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l

fe
e
s

fo
r

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s

in
to

fo
rm

e
r

te
n
a
n
t

a
rr

e
a
rs

.

H
o
u
s
in

g
R

e
p
a
ir

s
5
,5

6
5

4
,1

7
4

3
,8

8
5

3
,8

1
5

-2
8
9

-6
.9

2
T

h
e

m
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f

th
is

v
a
ri

a
n
c
e

re
la

te
s

to
a
n

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d

o
n

th
e

g
a
s

s
e
rv

ic
in

g
b
u
d
g
e
t.

O
n
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r
is

s
u
b
m

it
ti
n
g

in
v
o
ic

e
s

o
n
e

m
o
n
th

la
te

r

th
a
n

a
g
re

e
d
.

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
It

e
m

s
1
,5

1
1

1
,0

7
6

9
7
8

8
9
4

-9
8

-9
.1

1

7
,3

5
0

5
,5

0
9

5
,1

0
2

4
,9

9
1

M
a
jo

r
in

c
o
m

e
it
e
m

s
:

G
ro

s
s

D
w

e
ll
in

g
R

e
n
t

2
3
,3

8
5

1
7
,6

4
9

1
7
,6

3
4

1
7
,0

8
4

-1
5

-0
.0

8

T
h
e
re

is
a

n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

a
re

a
s

s
h
o
w

in
g

a
n

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
,

th
e

m
o
s
t

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t

o
f

w
h
ic

h
is

h
e
a
ti
n
g

a
n
d

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
.

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

0
7
/0

8

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



2
0
0
7
/0

8
C

A
P

IT
A

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

F
IN

A
N

C
E

,
P

E
R

F
O

R
M

A
N

C
E

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

&
C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

S
U

P
P

O
R

T
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

a
n
d

L
E

A
D

E
R

S
A

N
N

E
X

1
0

0
7
/0

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

0
7
/0

8
0
7
/0

8

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

F
in

a
n

c
e
,
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

M
a
n

't
&

C
S

S

Y
o
u
th

S
p
o
rt

s
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

1
3
2

6
8

0
-6

8
0

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h

n
o

g
ra

n
ts

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

p
a
id

a
s

a
t
m

o
n
th

9
,

R
o
y
d
o
n

(£
4
0
,0

0
0
)

a
n
d

M
a
tc

h
in

g
(£

2
8
,0

0
0
)

a
re

n
o
w

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.
E

v
e
ry

e
ff

o
rt

is
b
e
in

g
m

a
d
e
 t
o

c
o
m

p
le

te

a
ll

re
m

a
in

in
g

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
  
th

is
y
e
a
r,

b
u
t
re

a
lis

ti
c
a
lly

,

th
e
re

is
lik

e
ly

 t
o

b
e

a
c
a
rr

y
o
v
e
r

o
f

u
p
 t
o

£
7
3
,0

0
0
.
It

is
e
xp

e
c
te

d
  
th

a
t
a

re
p
o
rt

w
ill

b
e

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t
o

C
a
b
in

e
t
o
n

1
0

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
8
.

M
e
s
s
e
n
g
e
r

V
e
h
ic

le
1
5

1
5

1
5

0
0

S
c
h
e
m

e
c
o
m

p
le

te
.

C
iv

ic
 O

ff
ic

e
W

o
rk

s
(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
P

la
n
n
in

g

S
e
rv

ic
e

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

w
o
rk

s
)

7
7

5
4

-5
-5

9
0

W
o
rk

o
n
 t
h
e

C
iv

ic
 O

ff
ic

e
p
ro

je
c
ts

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

d
e
la

y
e
d

s
o

fa
r 

th
is

y
e
a
r.

In
a
d
d
it
io

n
,
a
n

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
c
re

d
it
o
r

h
a
s

y
e
t 
to

b
e

c
le

a
re

d
.

IE
G

fu
n
d
e
d

IC
T

s
c
h
e
m

e
s

3
0
4

2
2
8

1
3
8

-9
0

-3
9

A
ll

IE
G

fu
n
d
e
d

s
c
h
e
m

e
s

a
re

b
ro

a
d
ly

o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t.

T
h
e

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n

o
f 

th
e

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s

a
n
d

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

s
y
s
te

m
re

p
re

s
e
n
ts

 t
h
e

m
a
in

s
c
h
e
m

e
a
t

£
2
4
0
,0

0
0

o
f 

th
e

fu
ll

y
e
a
r

b
u
d
g
e
t.

O
th

e
r

IC
T

P
ro

je
c
ts

4
3
9

2
9
9

1
3
5

-1
6
4

-5
5

M
o
s
t
o
f 

th
e

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

e
n
e
ra

l
IT

b
u
d
g
e
t
w

h
ic

h
is

p
la

n
n
e
d
 t
o

b
e

s
p
e
n
t
a
t 
th

e
e
n
d

o
f

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
y
e
a
r.

G
e
n
e
ra

l
C

a
p
it
a
l
C

o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y

1
8
1

0
0

0
0

T
h
is

u
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
b
u
d
g
e
t
is

a
u
to

m
a
ti
c
a
lly

p
ro

fi
le

d
in

to

m
o
n
th

1
2

u
n
le

s
s

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

is
g
ra

n
te

d
 t
o

u
s
e

it
o
n

a

s
p
e
c
if
ic

s
c
h
e
m

e
.
It

is
 t
h
e
n

m
o
v
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

re
le

v
a
n
t

G
e
n
e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

C
a
p
it
a
l
h
e
a
d
in

g
.

T
o
ta

l
1
,1

4
8

6
6
4

2
8
3

-3
8
1

-5
7

L
e
a
d

e
r'

s
P

o
rt

fo
li
o

M
e
rl
in

W
a
y

L
a
n
d

S
a
le

1
5

1
1

5
-6

-5
6

T
o
ta

l
1
5

1
1

5
-6

-5
6

B
u
d
g
e
t
v

A
c
tu

a
l

T
h
ir
d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

0
7
/0

8

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

Page 19



2
0

0
7

/0
8

C
A

P
IT

A
L

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

-
L

E
IS

U
R

E
a

n
d

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
A

N
N

E
X

1
1

0
7

/0
8

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

F
u

ll
Y

e
a

r
0

7
/0

8
0

7
/0

8

B
u

d
g

e
t

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

L
e

is
u

re

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
L

e
is

u
re

C
e

n
tr

e
1

4
0

0
0

0

T
h

is
b

u
d

g
e

t
is

fo
r 

tw
o

h
e

a
lt
h

a
n

d
s
a

fe
ty

is
s
u

e
s

a
n

d
fo

r

w
o

rk
 t

o
 t

h
e

h
o

t
w

a
te

r
s
y
s
te

m
.

T
h

e
fo

rm
e

r
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
in

 t
h

e
n

e
xt

fe
w

m
o

n
th

s
.

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
S

L
M

a
re

s
ti
ll

in
v
e

s
ti
g

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

h
o

t
w

a
te

r
s
y
s
te

m
a

n
d

 t
h

e
£

7
,0

0
0

b
u

d
g

e
t

fo
r 

th
is

m
a

y
h

a
v
e

 t
o

b
e

c
a

rr
ie

d
fo

rw
a

rd
.

O
n

g
a

r
L

e
is

u
re

C
e

n
tr

e
3

0
0

0
0

E
xp

e
n

d
it
u

re
is

p
la

n
n

e
d

fo
r

M
a

rc
h

w
h

e
n

w
o

rk
w

ill

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

in
s
u

p
p

o
rt

o
f

a
s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e

p
it
c
h

e
s

a
t

O
n

g
a

r
a

s
a

m
u

lt
i-

s
p

o
rt

s
h

u
b

.

N
W

A
ir

fi
e

ld
M

a
rk

e
t 

Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

1
1

0
8

3
3

4
-4

9
-5

9
T

h
e

a
c
tu

a
l
e

xp
e

n
d

it
u

re
 t

o
m

o
n

th
9

a
p

p
e

a
rs

 t
o

h
a

v
e

re
d

u
c
e

d
s
in

c
e

m
o

n
th

6
.

T
h

is
is

b
e

c
a

u
s
e

s
o

m
e

m
is

c
o

d
in

g
s

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

d
is

c
o

v
e

re
d

.
H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
w

o
rk

o
n

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

a
t 

th
e

A
ir

fi
e

ld
is

p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
re

a
s
o

n
a

b
ly

w
e

ll.

M
u

s
e

u
m

R
e

d
is

p
la

y
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

8
6

3
-3

-5
0

W
o

rk
a

t 
th

e
m

u
s
e

u
m

is
e

xp
e

c
te

d
 t

o
b

e
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
b

y

th
e

e
n

d
o

f 
th

e
y
e

a
r.

T
o

ta
l

1
3

5
8

9
3

7
-5

2
-5

8

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l
P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

B
o

b
b

in
g

w
o

rt
h

T
ip

1
,0

0
0

7
5

0
9

2
4

1
7

4
2

3
T

h
is

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t

is
p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
a

h
e

a
d

o
f 

ta
rg

e
t

a
n

d
it

is

a
n

ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t
s
o

m
e

o
f 

th
e

2
0

0
8

/0
9

e
s
ti
m

a
te

w
ill

n
e

e
d

 t
o

b
e

b
ro

u
g

h
t

fo
rw

a
rd

in
to

2
0

0
7

/0
8

.

R
e

fu
s
e

a
n

d
S

tr
e

e
t

C
le

a
n

s
in

g
V

e
h

ic
le

s
8

0
0

8
0

0
8

0
0

0
0

T
h

e
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

o
f 

th
e

v
e

h
ic

le
s

fr
o

m
 t

h
e

le
a

s
in

g

c
o

m
p

a
n

y
w

a
s

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
in

M
a

y
2

0
0

7

W
h

e
e

le
d

B
in

s
2

0
0

0
0

0
T

h
is

b
u

d
g

e
t

w
a

s
c
a

rr
ie

d
fo

rw
a

rd
fr

o
m

2
0

0
6

/0
7

 t
o

p
u

rc
h

a
s
e

re
c
y
c
lin

g
b

in
s

fo
r

fl
a

ts
a

n
d

o
th

e
r

c
o

m
m

u
n

a
l

b
u

ild
in

g
s
.

T
o

ta
l

1
,8

2
0

1
,5

5
0

1
,7

2
4

1
7

4
1

1

T
h

ir
d

Q
u

a
rt

e
r

0
7

/0
8

B
u

d
g

e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

Page 20



2
0
0
7
/0

8
C

A
P

IT
A

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

P
L
A

N
N

IN
G

A
N

D
E

C
O

N
D

E
V

,
C

IV
IL

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R
IN

G
&

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

A
N

N
E

X
1
2

0
7
/0

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

0
7
/0

8
0
7
/0

8

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

P
la

n
n

in
g

&
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

D
e
v
't

T
C

E
:
L
o
u
g
h
to

n
H

ig
h

R
o
a
d

W
o
rk

s
5
3

4
0

-5
6

-9
6

0
T

h
e

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e

a
c
tu

a
l
s
p
e
n
d

re
la

te
s
 t
o

e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

c
h
a
rg

e
d

to
2
0
0
6
/0

7
.
It

c
o
v
e
rs

a
n

in
v
o
ic

e
w

h
ic

h
h
a
d

b
e
e
n

d
is

p
u
te

d

w
it
h
 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il

b
u
t 
th

is
h
a
s

n
o
w

b
e
e
n

a
g
re

e
d

a
n
d

is
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

b
e
in

g
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
.

T
C

E
:
L
o
u
g
h
to

n
B

ro
a
d
w

a
y

W
o
rk

s
1
6
5

1
0
3

4
4

-5
9

-5
7

T
h
e

m
a
in

w
o
rk

s
a
re

e
xp

e
c
te

d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e

p
la

c
e

in
2
0
0
8
/0

9
,

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

fi
n
a
lis

in
g

a
n

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t
w

it
h

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
G

ri
d
 G

a
s
.

T
h
e

b
u
lk

o
f 

th
e

b
u
d
g
e
t
p
ro

v
is

io
n

h
a
s

a
lr
e
a
d
y

b
e
e
n

s
lip

p
e
d

in
to

2
0
0
8
/0

9
,
b
u
t 
th

e
re

m
a
y

b
e

m
o
re

s
lip

p
a
g
e
.

P
D

G
C

a
p
it
a
l

S
c
h
e
m

e
7
5

1
9

1
-1

8
0

N
o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

o
f 

th
e

P
la

n
n
in

g
D

e
le

iv
e
ry

 G
ra

n
t
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

fo
r

2
0
0
7
/0

8
w

a
s

o
n
ly

re
c
e
iv

e
d

re
c
e
n
tl
y
.
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

it
is

e
xp

e
c
te

d
 t
o

b
e

s
p
e
n
t
b
y
 t
h
e

e
n
d

o
f 

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
y
e
a
r

T
o
ta

l
2
9
3

1
6
2

-1
1

-1
7
3

-1
0
7

C
iv

il
E

n
g

in
e
e
ri

n
g

&
M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

C
a
r

P
a
rk

in
g

&
T

ra
ff

ic
S

c
h
e
m

e
s

2
1
9

1
6
5

-5
6

-2
2
1

-1
3
4

T
h
e

n
e
g
a
ti
v
e

s
p
e
n
d

re
la

te
s
 t
o

e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

c
h
a
rg

e
d
 t
o

2
0
0
6
/0

7
.
T

h
e

d
is

p
u
te

d
in

v
o
ic

e
w

it
h
 t
h
e

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
s

n
o
w

b
e
e
n

a
g
re

e
d

a
n
d

is
b
e
in

g
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
d
.
T

h
e

re
m

a
in

in
g

b
u
d
g
e
t
is

s
ti
ll

e
xp

e
c
te

d
 t
o

b
e

s
p
e
n
t 
th

is
y
e
a
r

o
n
c
e

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il

s
ig

n
s

o
ff

 t
h
e

w
o
rk

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n

o
n
 t
h
e

B
u
c
k
h
u
rs

t
H

ill
p
a
rk

in
g

a
n
d
 t
ra

ff
ic

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t
s
c
h
e
m

e
.

O
th

e
r

C
iv

il
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri
n
g

S
c
h
e
m

e
s

1
5
8

2
6

5
-2

1
-8

1
D

e
liv

e
ry

a
n
d

p
a
y
m

e
n
t
fo

r 
th

e
n
e
w

 t
ra

c
to

r
fo

r
g
ro

u
n
d
s

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

(£
5
3
,0

0
0
)

is
e
xp

e
c
te

d
in

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

2
0
0
8
.

F
lo

o
d

a
lle

v
ia

ti
o
n

w
o
rk

s
a
re

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
t
a
n
d

it
is

lik
e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
re

w
ill

b
e

a
c
a
rr

y
fo

rw
a
rd

in
to

2
0
0
8
/0

9
.

T
o
ta

l
3
7
7

1
9
1

-5
1

-2
4
2

-1
2
7

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t
v

A
c
tu

a
l

0
7
/0

8
T

h
ir
d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

Page 21



2
0
0
7
/0

8
-

C
A

P
IT

A
L

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

-
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

F
U

N
D

A
N

N
E

X
1
3

0
7
/0

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

0
7
/0

8
0
7
/0

8

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

H
o

u
s
in

g
 G

e
n

e
ra

l
F

u
n

d

C
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t
o

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

H
o
u
s
in

g
1
,2

3
5

7
1
0

7
1
0

0
0
.0

0
A

p
a
y
m

e
n
t
o
f

£
7
1
0
,0

0
0

w
a
s

m
a
d
e
 t
o

L
o
n
d
o
n

a
n
d
 Q

u
a
d
ra

n
t

H
o
u
s
in

g
T

ru
s
t
in

M
a
y

2
0
0
7
 t
o

p
ro

v
id

e
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o
u
s
in

g
a
t

th
e
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r,

C
h
ip

p
in

g
 O

n
g
a
r.

T
h
is

w
a
s
 t
h
e

s
u
b
je

c
t
o
f

a
re

p
o
rt

to
C

a
b
in

e
t
o
n

1
3

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
6
.
W

it
h

re
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t
h
e

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
 t
o

E
s
tu

a
ry

H
.A

.,
a

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
h
a
s

n
o
w

b
e
e
n

re
c
e
iv

e
d

w
h
ic

h
in

d
ic

a
te

s
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
ta

lli
n
g

£
1
9
0
,0

0
0

a
re

e
xp

e
c
te

d
 t
o

b
e

m
a
d
e

in
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

a
n
d

M
a
rc

h

th
is

y
e
a
r.

A
c
a
rr

y
fo

rw
a
rd

o
f

£
3
1
0
,0

0
0

is
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

lik
e
ly

,

w
h
ic

h
w

o
u
ld

in
c
re

a
s
e

n
e
xt

y
e
a
rs

b
u
d
g
e
t 
to

£
8
1
0
,0

0
0
.

D
is

a
b
le

d
F

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 G

ra
n
ts

5
0
0

3
7
5

1
9
4

-1
8
1

-4
8

E
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

a
t

m
o
n
th

9
is

lo
w

b
e
c
a
u
s
e

th
e
re

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a

d
e
c
re

a
s
e

in
th

e
n
u
m

b
e
r

a
n
d

s
iz

e
o
f

g
ra

n
ts

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d

th
is

y
e
a
r.

P
re

d
ic

ti
n
g

g
ra

n
t

e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

is
a

v
e
ry

in
e
xa

c
t

s
c
ie

n
c
e

b
u
t,

ta
k
in

g
g
e
n
e
ra

l
tr

e
n
d
s

a
n
d

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
in

to
a
c
c
o
u
n
t,

it
is

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
th

a
t

D
F

G
s

w
ill

b
e

in
th

e
o
rd

e
r

o
f

£
4
0
0
,0

0
0
,

re
q
u
ir
in

g
a

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0

c
a
rr

y
fo

rw
a
rd

.

O
th

e
r

P
ri
v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r 
G

ra
n
ts

2
7
5

1
8
3

5
7

-1
2
6

-6
9

T
h
e

n
e
w

P
ri
v
a
te

S
e
c
to

r 
G

ra
n
ts

p
o
lic

y
w

a
s

u
p

a
n
d

ru
n
n
in

g

fr
o
m

J
u
n
e

2
0
0
7
.
T

h
e
 t
a
k
e

u
p

o
f

n
e
w

g
ra

n
ts

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

s
lo

w
e
r

th
a
n

e
xp

e
c
te

d
b
u
t
a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

e
xp

e
n
d
ti
u
re

h
a
v
e

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e

y
e
a
r.

It
h
a
s

b
e
e
n

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d

th
a
t
e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

w
ill

 t
o
ta

l
u
p
 t
o

£
2
2
0
,0

0
0

b
y
 t
h
e

e
n
d

o
f 

th
e

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
y
e
a
r.

T
h
is

is
b
a
s
e
d

o
n

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 t
o

3
0

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

2
0
0
7
,
a
s
s
u
m

in
g

a
le

a
d
-i
n

p
e
ri
o
d

o
f

s
ix

m
o
n
th

s
,
a
n
d

e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

 t
re

n
d
s

c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o

ri
s
e

in
J
a
n
u
a
ry

2
0
0
8
.
T

h
is

w
o
u
ld

re
q
u
ir
e

a
c
a
rr

y
fo

rw
a
rd

o
f

a
t
le

a
s
t
£
5
5
,0

0
0
.

O
th

e
r

H
o
u
s
in

g
 G

e
n
e
ra

l
F

u
n
d

S
c
h
e
m

e
s

3
8
7

1
8

3
-1

5
-8

3
T

h
e

m
a
jo

ri
ty

o
f 

th
is

b
u
d
g
e
t
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 t
h
e

c
o
m

p
u
ls

o
ry

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e

o
f

8
/8

a
S

u
n

S
tr

e
e
t,

W
a
lt
h
a
m

A
b
b
e
y
.
It

is
h
o
p
e
d
 t
h
a
t

th
e

a
q
u
is

it
io

n
,
e
s
tm

a
te

d
a
t
£
3
5
0
,0

0
0

w
ill

 t
a
k
e

p
la

c
e

a
t 
th

e
e
n
d

o
f 

th
is

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l
y
e
a
r

b
u
t
it

m
a
y

h
a
v
e
 t
o

b
e

d
e
la

y
e
d

u
n
ti
l

2
0
0
8
/0

9
.

T
o
ta

l
2
,3

9
7

1
,2

8
6

9
6
4

-3
2
2

-2
5

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

T
h
ir
d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

0
7
/0

8

B
u
d
g
e
t
v

A
c
tu

a
l

Page 22



2
0
0
7
/0

8
C

A
P

IT
A

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

H
O

U
S

IN
G

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

A
N

N
E

X
1
4

0
7
/0

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
ts

F
u
ll

Y
e
a
r

0
7
/0

8
0
7
/0

8

B
u
d
g
e
t

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%

H
o

u
s
in

g
R

e
v
e
n

u
e

A
c
c
o

u
n

t

S
p
ri

n
g
fi
e
ld

s
,

W
a
lt
h
a
m

A
b
b
e
y

6
1
7

4
6
3

2
6
3

-2
0
0

-4
3

T
h
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

s
ta

rt
d
a
te

w
a
s

a
g
re

e
d

a
h
e
a
d

o
f

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s

a
n
d

th
e

c
a
s
h
fl
o
w

re
c
e
iv

e
d

in
O

c
to

b
e
r

2
0
0
7

e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
th

e
v
a
lu

e
o
f

w
o
rk

s
to

b
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

b
y

th
e

y
e
a
r

e
n
d

to
b
e

£
1
,4

8
1
,0

0
0
,

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
fe

e
s
.

A
c
tu

a
l

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s

to
d
a
te

h
a
v
e
,

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

b
e
e
n

lo
w

e
r

th
a
n

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
a
n
d

w
e

a
re

a
w

a
it
in

g
a

re
v
is

e
d

c
a
s
h
fl
o
w

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

fr
o
m

th
e

Q
S

.
T

h
is

w
il
l

b
e

re
p
o
rt

e
d

o
ra

ll
y

a
t

th
e

m
e
e
ti
n
g
.

In
a
n
y

e
v
e
n
t,

it
is

li
k
e
ly

th
a
t

s
o
m

e
o
f

th
e

2
0
0
8
/0

9
w

il
l

n
e
e
d
 t

o
b
e

b
ro

u
g
h
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

in
to

2
0
0
7
/0

8
.

H
e
a
ti
n
g
/R

e
w

ir
in

g
1
,0

6
3

7
9
7

8
1
0

1
3

2
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

o
n

h
e
a
ti
n
g

u
p
g
ra

d
e
s

is
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
a
h
e
a
d

o
f

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

In
c
o
n
tr

a
s
t,

re
w

ir
in

g
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

a
re

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
t

a
t

m
o
n
th

9
,

b
u
t

it
is

th
o
u
g
h
t

th
a
t

th
e

fu
ll

e
s
ti
m

a
te

w
il
l

b
e

s
p
e
n
t

b
y

th
e

e
n
d

o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l
y
e
a
r.

W
in

d
o
w

s
/R

o
o
fi
n
g
 /

 

A
s
b
e
s
to

s
 /

 W
a
te

r
T

a
n
k
s

7
4
4

4
6
8

3
2
1

-1
4
7

-3
1

A
c
tu

a
l
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

o
n

P
V

C
U

w
in

d
o
w

s
w

a
s

a
h
e
a
d

o
f

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

b
y

th
e

e
n
d

o
f

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
7
.

C
o
n
v
e
rs

e
ly

,
ro

o
fi
n
g

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

,

a
s
b
e
s
to

s
w

o
rk

s
a
n
d

th
e

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

o
f

w
a
te

r
ta

n
k
s

a
re

b
e
h
in

d

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

a
s

a
re

s
u
lt

th
e
re

is
li
k
e
ly

to
b
e

s
li
p
p
a
g
e

o
f

a
ro

u
n
d

£
1
0
0
,0

0
0

re
lt
in

g
in

 t
h
e

m
a
in

 t
o

ro
o
fi
n
g

w
o
rk

s
.

O
th

e
r

P
la

n
n
e
d

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

5
3
3

3
7
7

2
3
0

-1
4
7

-3
9

T
h
e

m
a
in

v
a
ri

a
ti
o
n
s

h
e
re

re
la

te
p
ri

m
a
ri

ly
 t

o
e
n
e
rg

y
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y

w
o
rk

s
;

B
ri

ti
s
h
 G

a
s

in
v
o
ic

e
 t

h
e

a
u
th

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

th
e

C
o
u
n
c
il
's

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n

o
f 

th
e

c
o
s
ts

a
n
d

b
il
li
n
g

is
la

g
g
in

g
b
e
h
in

d

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

O
th

e
r

C
a
p
it
a
l
W

o
rk

s
3
,1

8
2

2
,3

1
4

1
,6

3
3

-6
8
1

-2
9

T
h
e

b
u
d
g
e
t

fo
r

k
it
c
h
e
n

&
b
a
th

ro
o
m

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y

th
is

y
e
a
r

a
n
d

th
e
re

h
a
s

b
e
e
n

a
n

a
c
c
e
le

ra
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
in

th
e

s
e
c
o
n
d

h
a
lf

o
f

th
e

y
e
a
r.

A
t

m
o
n
th

9
th

e
re

a
re

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s

a
c
ro

s
s

a
ll

c
a
te

g
o
ri

e
s

o
f

w
o
rk

in

th
is

a
re

a
,

in
c
lu

d
in

g
th

e
k
it
c
h
e
n

a
n
d

b
a
th

ro
o
m

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

it
is

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
th

a
t

m
u
c
h

o
f

th
e

w
o
rk

p
la

n
n
e
d

w
il
l

b
e

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

b
y

th
e

e
n
d

o
f

th
e

y
e
a
r

a
n
d

th
e

a
m

o
u
n
t

re
q
u
ir

e
d

a
s

a

c
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

is
e
s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

o
b
e

in
 t

h
e

o
rd

e
r

o
f

£
1
6
5
,0

0
0
.

T
o
ta

l
6
,1

3
9

4
,4

1
9

3
,2

5
7

-1
,1

6
2

-2
6

T
h
ir

d
 Q

u
a
rt

e
r

0
7
/0

8

V
a
ri

a
n
c
e

B
u
d
g
e
t

v
A

c
tu

a
l

Page 23



2
0
0
7
/0

8
C

A
P

IT
A

L
M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
-

M
A

J
O

R
S

C
H

E
M

E
S

A
N

N
E

X
1
5

C
a
p

it
a
l
P

ro
je

c
t

O
ri

g
in

a
l

S
ta

rt
D

a
te

L
a
te

s
t

E
s
t/

A
c
tu

a
l

S
ta

rt
D

a
te

O
ri

g
in

a
l

F
in

is
h

D
a
te

L
a
te

s
t

E
s
t/

A
c
tu

a
l

F
in

is
h

D
a
te

O
ri

g
in

a
l

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
je

c
t

C
o

s
t

L
a
te

s
t

T
o

ta
l
P

ro
je

c
t

C
o

s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

A
c
tu

a
l
E

x
p

T
o

D
a
te

£
'0

0
0

£
'0

0
0

%
£
'0

0
0

B
o

b
b

in
g

w
o

rt
h

T
ip

M
a
y
-0

5
M

a
r-

0
7

N
o
v
-0

5
O

c
t-

0
8

1
,1

0
7

2
,3

8
0

1
1
5
%

1
,6

2
2

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
H

ig
h

R
o

a
d

T
o

w
n

C
e
n

tr
e

E
n

h
a
n

c
e
m

e
n

t
J
u
l-
0
5

A
u
g
-0

5
M

a
r-

0
6

M
a
y
-0

6
9
9
6

1
,5

7
4

5
8
%

1
,4

6
5

L
o

u
g

h
to

n
B

ro
a
d

w
a
y

T
o

w
n

C
e
n

tr
e

E
n

h
a
n

c
e
m

e
n

t
J
u
l-
0
6

O
c
t-

0
6

O
c
t-

0
6

D
e
c
-0

6
3
,0

0
3

3
,1

7
5

6
%

1
,0

5
5

C
u

s
to

m
e
r

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
n
/a

n
/a

n
/a

n
/a

2
,5

0
0

2
,5

0
0

n
/a

0

S
p

ri
n

g
fi

e
ld

s
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t

S
c
h

e
m

e
W

o
rk

s
(H

R
A

)
J
u
l-
0
4

N
o
v
-0

7
F

e
b
-0

6
J
a
n
-0

9
4
,0

3
3

4
,1

2
4

2
%

5
2
3

A
ll 

th
e

re
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
s

o
f

le
a
s
h
o
ld

fl
a
ts

h
a
v
e

n
o
w

o
c
c
u
rr

e
d

a
t
a

fi
n
a
l
c
o
s
t
o
f

£
6
8
6
,0

0
0
,
w

it
h

o
n
ly

o
n
e

le
a
s
h
o
ld

e
r

o
p
ti
n
g
 t
o

re
m

a
in

a
s

s
u
c
h
.
T

h
e
s
e

c
o
s
ts

h
a
v
e

b
e
e
n

e
xc

lu
d
e
d

fr
o
m

 t
h
e

a
b
o
v
e

fi
g
u
re

s
.

C
a
b
in

e
t
o
n

1
6

J
u
ly

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
e
n
d
e
r

o
f

A
p
o
llo

L
o
n
d
o
n
 t
o

c
a
rr

y
o
u
t 
th

e
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t
s
c
h
e
m

e
.
T

h
e

H
e
a
d

o
f

H
o
u
s
in

g
s
e
rv

ic
e
s

w
a
s

a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 t
o

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t

s
u
m

b
a
s
e
d

o
n

a
s
h
o
rt

e
r

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t
p
e
ri
o
d

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

o
p
ti
o
n

w
a
s

re
je

c
te

d
.
T

h
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t
s
ta

rt
e
d

in
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r

2
0
0
7

a
n
d

h
a
s

a
n

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
fi
n
is

h
d
a
te

o
f

J
a
n
u
a
ry

2
0
0
9
.

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

a
c
ti
v
it
y

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d

o
n

1
9

M
a
rc

h
2
0
0
7
,
a
lm

o
s
t
n
in

e
m

o
n
th

s
la

te
r 

th
a
n

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

p
la

n
n
e
d
.
D

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e

d
e
la

y
, 
th

ir
d

p
a
rt

y
 t
e
n
d
e
rs

h
a
d
 t
o

b
e

re
-t

e
n
d
e
re

d

a
n
d

c
o
s
ts

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y

ro
s
e
.
P

o
o
r

w
e
a
th

e
r

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

h
a
s

a
ls

o
a
d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

d
e
la

y
s
.
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e

p
ro

je
c
t
is

n
o
w

p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
w

e
ll

a
n
d

e
xp

e
n
d
it
u
re

is
a
h
e
a
d

o
f 

th
e

re
v
is

e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t
s
p
e
n
d

fo
r

2
0
0
7
/0

8
.
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 t
o
ta

l
p
ro

je
c
t
c
o
s
t
s
h
o
w

n
a
b
o
v
e

a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o

h
a
v
e

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

o
v
e
r 

th
e

o
ri
g
in

a
l
c
o
s
t,

it
m

u
s
t
b
e

n
o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e

o
ri
g
in

a
l
p
ro

je
c
t
c
o
s
t
fi
g
u
re

re
la

te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e

o
ri
g
in

a
l
s
c
h
e
m

e
w

h
ic

h
w

a
s

s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
to

 t
h
e

s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
h
a
t
is

n
o
w

b
e
in

g
p
u
rs

u
e
d
.

T
h
e

s
e
c
o
n
d

p
h
a
s
e

o
f 

th
e

L
o
u
g
h
to

n
H

ig
h

R
o
a
d

T
o
w

n
C

e
n
tr

e
E

n
h
a
n
c
e
m

e
n
t
s
c
h
e
m

e
is

n
o
w

c
o
m

p
le

te
a
n
d
 t
h
e

fi
n
a
l
a
c
c
o
u
n
t
is

n
e
a
ri
n
g

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
.
T

h
e

fi
n
a
l
p
o
s
it
io

n
is

e
xp

e
c
te

d
 t
o

b
e

m
o
re

o
r

le
s
s

in
lin

e
w

it
h
 t
h
e

b
u
d
g
e
t.
 O

n
c
e

E
s
s
e
x

C
o
u
n
ty

C
o
u
n
c
il

h
a
v
e

a
d
o
p
te

d
 t
h
e

w
o
rk

,
a
n

e
n
d

o
f

s
c
h
e
m

e
re

p
o
rt

w
ill

b
e

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t
o

C
a
b
in

e
t.

T
h
is

s
c
h
e
m

e
h
a
s

e
n
c
o
u
n
te

re
d

a
n
u
m

b
e
r

o
f

u
n
fo

rs
e
e
n

p
ro

b
le

m
s

d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e

lo
c
a
ti
o
n

a
n
d

d
e
p
th

o
f 

th
e

g
a
s

m
a
in

a
n
d
 t
h
is

c
o
u
n
c
il

is
s
ti
ll

e
n
d
e
a
v
o
u
ri
n
g
 t
o

re
a
c
h

a
n

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t
a
n
d

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y

w
it
h

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
G

ri
d
 G

a
s
.
P

h
a
s
e

2
o
f 

th
e

s
c
h
e
m

e
is

p
la

n
n
e
d
 t
o

s
ta

rt
in

M
a
y

2
0
0
8
,
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

C
a
b
in

e
t
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.

A
n

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n

s
ti
ll

e
xi

s
ts

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e

c
a
p
it
a
l
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
fo

r 
th

is
,
h
o
w

e
v
e
r

a
t 
th

is
s
ta

g
e

it
is

u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
s
c
h
e
m

e
w

ill
p
ro

c
e
e
d

in
 t
h
e

n
e
a
r

fu
tu

re
.

Page 24



Report to the Finance and Performance 
Management Committee 
 
Date of meeting:  17 March 2008. 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support Services. 
 
Subject:  Risk Management – Updated Corporate Risk Register. 
 
Responsible Officer:   Brian Moldon  (01992-564606). 
                                                                        
Democratic Services Officer:  Gary Woodhall  (01992-564470). 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 

(1) To agree the proposed amendments to the Corporate Risk Register;  
 
(2) To consider whether there are any new risks that are currently not on the 
current Corporate Risk Register: and  
 
(3) To consider whether the tolerance line on the risk matrix should be 
amended. 

 
Introduction: 
 
1. At the meeting of the Cabinet Committee held on 19 November 2007 a full update to 
the Corporate Risk Register was received, which had been amended for the Top 
Management Restructure. Because of the publication deadline for this agenda the updates 
suggested by the Risk Management Group have not yet been considered by the Corporate 
Governance Group and so any amendments suggested by the Corporate Governance Group 
meeting on 5 March will be reported orally. 
  
Corporate Risk Register: 
 
2. At the Risk Management Group meeting on 22 January 2008, the risks and their 
scores were reviewed to take account of any changes since 19 November.  It was felt that 
given the appointment of Sita and the length of time the leisure contract has now been 
running that risk 20 relating to Key Contracts could be reduced from C2 (Significant 
Likelihood, Critical Impact) to D2 (Low Likelihood, Critical Impact). Risk 10 relating to the 
Interim Management Restructure has been re-worded to Revised Organisational Structure 
and reduced from D2 (Low Likelihood, Critical Impact) to E2 (Very Low Likelihood, Critical 
Impact). This reduction places the risk below the tolerance line and consequently removes 
the need for an action plan. 
 
3. The Risk Management Group considers the relevance of current issues to the Council 
and given the number of high profile incidents of data losses recently reported felt that a new 
risk should be included for data loss. This new risk has been included as risk 18, replacing a 
risk previously deleted, and is scored as E2 (Very Low Likelihood, Critical Impact) this places 
it below the risk tolerance line. 
 
4. Members are now asked to consider the attached updated Corporate Risk Register 
and whether the risks listed are scored appropriately, whether there are any additional risks 
that should be included and whether the tolerance line needs to be amended.   

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 25



Conclusion: 
 
5. Now that the Council has a Corporate Risk Register and action plans in place, it is 
important that Members continue to review and monitor these risks and have an active 
involvement with identifying new risks to ensure that the Council can demonstrate the 
practical embedding of risk management, as well as to assist the Council in achieving its aims 
and objectives. 

Page 26



 

  

Appendix 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Corporate Risk Register 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 17 March 2008 
 

Page 27



 

  

Contents 
 

Page 
 

1. Introduction......................................................................................................................3 
 
2. The Process ....................................................................................................................3 

 
2.1 Risk identification .....................................................................................................3 
2.2 Risk analysis and prioritisation.................................................................................4 
2.3 Risk management and monitoring ...........................................................................4 

 
3. Results ............................................................................................................................5 

 
3.1 Risk profile ...............................................................................................................5 
3.2 Above the line Risk clusters .....................................................................................5 

 
Appendix 1 – Risk Register ....................................................................................................6 
 
Appendix 2 – Action Plans ...................................................................................................14 
 
 

Page 28



 

  

1. Introduction  
 
Risk Management is the process of identifying risks, evaluating their potential 
consequences and determining the most effective methods of controlling them and/or 
responding to them.  It is not an end in itself.  Rather, risk management is a means of 
minimising the costs and disruption to the organisation caused by undesired events. 
 
The aim is to reduce the frequency of risk events occurring (where possible) and minimise 
the severity of their consequences if they do occur. 
 
 

2. The Process 
 
To manage risk effectively, the risk associated with each policy option or service delivery 
method needs to be systematically identified, analysed, prioritised, controlled and 
monitored.  This process is referred to as the risk management cycle, which can be seen 
below. 
 

 

The Risk Management Cycle

RISK IDENTIFICATION

RISK ANALYSIS

PRIORITISATION
RISK MANAGEMENT

MONITORING

Page 29



 

  

2.1 Risk identification 
 
The first of five stages of the risk management cycle requires risk identification. This is 
achieved through standing items on Corporate Governance Group and Management Board 
and from discussions at the Risk Management Group, which is held quarterly.  Risk is 
covered under 13 categories of risk as shown below. 
 

` 

Political

Economic Social

Legislative/ 
Regulatory 

Environ-
mental

Competitive Customer/

Citizen

Managerial/ 
Professional 

Financial Legal Partnership/
Contractual

Physical

Techno-

logical

Step 1:Identification 

RISK IDENTIFICATION 

RISK ANALYSIS 

PRIORITISATION 
RISK MANAGEMENT

MONITORING

 
 

2.2 Risk analysis and prioritisation 
 
Once the risks are identified, these are then assessed for impact and likelihood and plotted 
onto a matrix.  The impact, compared against the objectives of the Authority, (Council Policy 
Themes and Aims), was measured as being negligible, marginal, critical or catastrophic.  
The likelihood, of the risks occurring over the next three years, was measured as being 
almost impossible, very low, low, significant, high or very high. 
 
A group of Members and Senior Officers originally set the risk tolerance line, which involved 
considering each of the squares on the matrix and deciding if they were prepared to tolerate 
a risk in that box or if they wanted to actively manage it. This theoretical tolerance line 
effectively splits the risks on the matrix, with those risks above the line requiring further 
scrutiny and those below the line not requiring high-level intervention at this time.  The 
Finance and Performance Management Cabinet Committee now review this twice a year. 
 

Page 30



 

  

2.3 Risk management and monitoring 
 
The next stage is to complete management action plans.  These plans frame the risk 
management actions that are required.  They map out the target for each risk i.e. to reduce 
the likelihood, impact or both.  They also include targets and critical success factors to allow 
the risk management action to be monitored.  
 
The monitoring of these action plans will take place at Corporate Governance Group, 
Management Board and the Risk Management Group.  The action plans are also reported 
to Members quarterly.  

 

3. Results 
 

3.1 Risk profile 
 
The risk profile and priority are given below. 
 
 
 
 

Likelihood: 
A Very High 
B High 
C Significant 
D Low 
E Very Low 
F Almost Impossible 
 
 
Impact: 
1 Catastrophic 
2 Critical 
3 Marginal 
4 Negligible 

                               
Appendix 1 shows all the risks that were rated on the profile. 

A  11   

B   1, 4, 13 3 

C   8  

D 12, 22 2, 15, 
16, 24 

17, 20   

E  5, 7b, 
14,  21, 
23 

6, 7a, 
9, 10, 
18, 19 

 

   
   

Li
ke

lih
oo

d 

F     

  4 3 2 1 
  Impact     

Page 31



 

  

3.2 Above the line Risk clusters 
 
The 8 above the line risks have been grouped into 6 clusters that will help to streamline the 
action planning process. These are shown below: 
 
Cluster name Risk 

Scenarios 
 

Executive Priority/ 
Council Plan Objective 

East of England Plan 3, 4 ExP iv, Green & Unique 1 
 

Recruitment in key areas 1, 13 Improving Performance 4 
& 5 
 

Key Contracts 20 ExP v, Green & Unique 2, 
Fit for Life 1 
 

Business Continuity Planning 8 Improving Performance 4 
& 5 
 

Local housing needs 11 ExP iii, Homes & 
Neighbourhoods 1 
 

Capital receipts spent on non revenue 
generating assets 

17 ExP i, Economic 
Prosperity 1 
 

 
 
The action plans can be seen at Appendix 2 
 
Relevant Executive Priorities (ExP) 2007/08 
 
(i) To maintain a sound financial position; 
(iii) To investigate new proposals for affordable housing in the district; 
(iv) To work with other Las in respect of the Green Belt and the final published version of the 
East of England Plan; 
(v) To monitor the new waste contract. 
 
 
Council Plan Objectives 
 
The Council Plan objectives referred to above are contained in the Action Plan of the 
Council Plan 2006-2010, which can be found on pages 74 to 87 of that document.

Page 32



 

Ve
rs

io
n 

6 
– 

18
/0

6/
07

 
 

 
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

– 
R

is
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
 Ri

sk
s m

ar
ke

d 
“ *

 ” 
ar

e a
bo

ve
 to

ler
an

ce
 an

d 
re

qu
ire

 m
an

ag
in

g 
No

 
Ra

tin
g 

 
Sh

or
t n

am
e 

Vu
ln

er
ab

ilit
y 

Tr
ig

ge
r 

Co
ns

eq
ue

nc
e 

3 
B1

 
* 

Ea
st 

of 
En

gla
nd

 
Pl

an
 – 

ho
us

ing
 bu

ilt 
wi

tho
ut 

inf
ra

str
uc

tur
e 

Th
e E

as
t o

f E
ng

lan
d p

lan
 w

ill 
me

an
 a 

sig
nif

ica
ntl

y i
nc

re
as

ed
 le

ve
l o

f h
ou

sin
g i

n 
the

 di
str

ict
.  

 Th
e i

nc
re

as
ed

 nu
mb

er
 of

 ho
us

es
 w

ill 
re

qu
ire

 an
 ac

co
mp

an
yin

g l
ev

el 
of 

inf
ra

str
uc

tur
e i

mp
ro

ve
me

nts
 (t

ra
ns

po
rt,

 
sc

ho
ols

, h
os

pit
als

)  
 

Ho
us

es
 bu

ilt 
wi

tho
ut 

ac
co

mp
an

yin
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts 

in 
inf

ra
str

uc
tur

e 

• 
De

ma
nd

s o
n s

er
vic

es
 in

cre
as

e 
• 

Inf
ra

str
uc

tur
e i

s p
ut 

un
de

r p
re

ss
ur

e 
• 

Tr
an

sp
or

t s
ys

tem
 un

de
r p

re
ss

ur
e 

• 
Ar

ea
 be

co
me

s l
es

s a
ttr

ac
tiv

e t
o e

mp
loy

er
s 

• 
Ar

ea
 be

co
me

s l
es

s a
ttr

ac
tiv

e p
lac

e t
o l

ive
 

   

1 
B2

 
* 

Re
cru

itm
en

t in
 ke

y 
ar

ea
s 

Th
e a

uth
or

ity
 is

 cu
rre

ntl
y c

ar
ryi

ng
 

va
ca

nc
ies

 an
d f

ind
ing

 it 
dif

fic
ult

 to
 re

cru
it 

in 
se

ve
ra

l p
ro

fes
sio

na
l a

re
as

, e
sp

. 
bu

ild
ing

 co
ntr

ol,
 so

lic
ito

rs,
 en

vir
on

me
nta

l 
he

alt
h a

nd
 to

 ju
nio

r m
an

ag
em

en
t r

ole
s 

  

Ke
y p

os
ts 

re
ma

in 
un

fill
ed

/ta
ke

 
un

ac
ce

pta
ble

 
len

gth
s o

f ti
me

 to
 fil

l  
 

• 
Pr

es
su

re
s o

n e
xis

tin
g s

taf
f 

• 
Di

ffic
ult

ies
 in

 su
cc

es
sio

n p
lan

nin
g 

• 
Ga

ps
 ap

pe
ar

 in
 st

ru
ctu

re
s 

• 
Re

lia
nc

e o
n a

ge
nc

y s
taf

f / 
co

ns
ult

an
ts 

• 
Ad

ve
rse

 im
pa

ct 
on

 se
rvi

ce
 de

liv
er

y 
 

4 
B2

 
* 

Ea
st 

of 
En

gla
nd

 
Pl

an
 – 

un
ab

le 
to 

ag
re

e j
oin

ed
 up

 
pla

n 

Th
e E

as
t o

f E
ng

lan
d p

lan
 m

ea
ns

 a 
ma

jor
 

am
ou

nt 
of 

gr
ow

th 
is 

pla
nn

ed
 fo

r t
he

 
dis

tric
t, b

oth
 in

 te
rm

s o
f h

ou
sin

g a
nd

 
inf

ra
str

uc
tur

e. 
Th

is 
is 

pa
rt 

of 
a n

ati
on

al 
Go

ve
rn

me
nt 

ag
en

da
 

 Th
is 

is 
se

en
 by

 so
me

 as
 an

 op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o 

de
ve

lop
 a 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

ar
ea

 of
 th

e d
ist

ric
t 

 

Co
un

cil
 un

ab
le 

to 
ag

re
e a

 jo
ine

d u
p 

pla
n w

ith
 al

l o
the

r 
inv

olv
ed

 pa
rtie

s 

• 
So

lut
ion

 (U
RC

) f
or

ce
d o

n C
ou

nc
il 

• 
Co

un
cil

 no
t p

ro
pe

rly
 re

co
mp

en
se

d f
or

 C
ou

nc
il l

an
d 

• 
Inc

re
as

ed
 am

ou
nt 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

/ h
ou

se
s 

• 
Un

ab
le 

to 
ma

xim
ise

 op
po

rtu
nit

y t
o d

ev
elo

p a
re

as
 of

 
dis

tric
t 

• 
Po

ss
ibl

e b
ou

nd
ar

y c
ha

ng
es

 
   

Page 33



 

Ve
rs

io
n 

6 
– 

18
/0

6/
07

 
 

 
 

No
 

Ra
tin

g 
 

Sh
or

t n
am

e 
Vu

ln
er

ab
ilit

y 
Tr

ig
ge

r 
Co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e 
13

 
B2

 
* 

Ke
y o

bje
cti

ve
s n

ot 
de

liv
er

ed
 du

e t
o 

ca
pa

cit
y i

ss
ue

s 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il i
s f

ac
ing

 a 
ch

all
en

gin
g 

ag
en

da
 w

ith
 a 

nu
mb

er
 of

 in
itia

tiv
es

 an
d 

pr
oje

cts
.  

 Th
er

e i
s a

 co
nc

er
n t

he
 co

rp
or

ate
 co

re
, in

 
pa

rtic
ula

r, 
is 

lig
ht 

in 
ter

ms
 of

 st
aff

ing
, 

re
so

ur
ce

 an
d c

ap
ac

ity
. A

nd
 w

hil
e t

he
 

Co
un

cil
 ha

s t
he

 fin
an

cia
l re

so
ur

ce
s t

o 
de

liv
er

 on
 ke

y p
rio

riti
es

, it
 m

ay
 no

t h
av

e 
su

ffic
ien

t H
R 

ca
pa

cit
y 

 Th
er

e a
re

 co
nc

er
ns

 ar
ou

nd
 ov

er
loa

d a
nd

 
a r

ec
og

nis
ed

 ne
ed

 to
 se

t a
ch

iev
ab

le 
ag

en
da

s a
nd

 no
t m

ak
e u

na
ch

iev
ab

le 
pr

om
ise

s. 
 

Co
un

cil
 fa

ils
 to

 
de

liv
er

 ke
y 

ob
jec

tiv
es

 on
 tim

e 

• 
Sl

ipp
ag

e o
n k

ey
 pr

oje
cts

 / i
nit

iat
ive

s 
• 

De
ad

lin
es

 an
d t

ar
ge

ts 
no

t m
et 

• 
La

ck
 of

 fo
cu

s 
• 

W
or

klo
ad

s i
nc

re
as

e 
• 

St
aff

 de
mo

tiv
ate

d 

8 
C2

  
* 

Bu
sin

es
s 

Co
nti

nu
ity

 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il i
s r

eq
uir

ed
 to

 de
ve

lop
 an

d 
im

ple
me

nt 
ro

bu
st 

Bu
sin

es
s C

on
tin

uit
y 

Pl
an

s i
n l

ine
 w

ith
 th

e r
eq

uir
em

en
ts 

of 
the

 
Ci

vil
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

ies
 A

ct 
 

  

Un
ab

le 
to 

re
sp

on
d 

eff
ec

tiv
ely

 to
 a 

bu
sin

es
s c

on
tin

uit
y 

inc
ide

nt 
(e

.g.
 IT

 
vir

us
 / f

lu 
pa

nd
em

ic)
 

 

• 
Se

rvi
ce

s d
isr

up
ted

 / L
os

s o
f s

er
vic

e 
• 

Po
ss

ibl
e l

os
s o

f in
co

me
 

• 
St

aff
 ab

se
nc

e 
• 

Ha
rd

sh
ip 

for
 so

me
 of

 th
e c

om
mu

nit
y 

• 
Co

un
cil

 cr
itic

ise
d f

or
 no

t r
es

po
nd

ing
 ef

fec
tiv

ely
 

 
11

 
A3

 
* 

Un
ab

le 
to 

pr
ov

ide
 

su
ffic

ien
t h

ou
sin

g 
for

 lo
ca

l p
eo

ple
 

Th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 ta
rg

ets
 in

 te
rm

s o
f k

ey
 

ho
us

ing
 ne

ed
s a

nd
 af

for
da

ble
 ho

us
ing

, 
ho

we
ve

r, 
the

re
 is

 a 
sh

or
tag

e o
f a

va
ila

ble
 

lan
d i

n t
he

 di
str

ict
 fo

r h
ou

sin
g a

nd
 

ec
on

om
ic 

de
ve

lop
me

nt,
 w

ith
 hi

gh
 ho

us
e 

pr
ice

s. 
 

 

Un
ab

le 
to 

pr
ov

ide
 

su
ffic

ien
t h

ou
sin

g f
or

 
loc

al 
pe

op
le 

• 
Un

ab
le 

to 
ac

hie
ve

 ta
rg

ets
 fo

r a
ffo

rd
ab

le 
ho

us
ing

 
• 

Co
un

cil
 se

en
 as

 fa
ilin

g 
• 

Di
str

ict
 be

co
me

s m
or

e s
ub

ur
ba

n 
• 

Yo
un

g p
eo

ple
 le

av
e a

re
a/I

nc
re

as
ed

 el
de

rly
 po

pu
lat

ion
 

• 
Ch

ar
ac

ter
 of

 di
str

ict
 ch

an
ge

s 

Page 34



 

Ve
rs

io
n 

6 
– 

18
/0

6/
07

 
 

 
 

No
 

Ra
tin

g 
 

Sh
or

t n
am

e 
Vu

ln
er

ab
ilit

y 
Tr

ig
ge

r 
Co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e 
17

 
D2

 
* 

Si
gn

ific
an

t a
mo

un
t 

of 
ca

pit
al 

re
ce

ipt
s 

sp
en

t o
n n

on
 

re
ve

nu
e g

en
er

ati
ng

 
as

se
ts 

Th
e a

uth
or

ity
 is

 cu
rre

ntl
y d

eb
t fr

ee
, 

ho
we

ve
r m

uc
h o

f th
e b

ud
ge

t is
 re

lia
nt 

on
 

ca
pit

al 
re

ce
ipt

s g
ain

ed
 fr

om
 sa

le 
of 

as
se

ts 
an

d i
nte

re
st 

inc
om

e f
ro

m 
inv

es
tm

en
t. 

Th
er

e i
s a

 5-
ye

ar
 ca

pit
al 

pr
og

ra
mm

e 
pla

nn
ed

, w
ith

 a 
no

ted
 de

cli
ne

 in
 th

e s
ale

 
of 

co
un

cil
 as

se
ts,

 pa
rtic

ula
rly

 ho
us

ing
 

sto
ck

.  
 

Au
tho

rity
 sp

en
ds

 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt 
am

ou
nt 

of 
ca

pit
al 

re
ce

ipt
s o

n 
no

n r
ev

en
ue

 
ge

ne
ra

tin
g a

ss
ets

 
e.g

.  h
ou

sin
g g

ra
nt 

 

• 
Lo

ss
 of

 in
ter

es
t 

• 
Lo

ss
 of

 co
ve

r f
or

 co
nti

ng
en

cie
s 

• 
Fin

an
cia

l s
tra

teg
y b

ec
om

es
 un

ten
ab

le 
in 

the
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 

• 
Se

rvi
ce

 re
du

cti
on

s r
eq

uir
ed

 
• 

La
rg

e C
ou

nc
il T

ax
 in

cre
as

es
 re

qu
ire

d 
 

20
 

D2
 

* 
Ke

y c
on

tra
ct 

co
lla

ps
es

 or
 

se
rvi

ce
 le

ve
ls 

de
ter

ior
ate

  

So
me

 ke
y c

ou
nc

il s
er

vic
es

 ar
e b

ein
g 

pr
ov

ide
d b

y c
on

tra
cto

rs.
 In

 so
me

 ar
ea

s, 
the

re
 ha

ve
 be

en
 ch

an
ge

s i
n t

er
ms

 of
 

se
rvi

ce
 de

liv
er

y a
nd

 th
er

e a
re

 co
nc

er
ns

 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e a

bil
ity

 of
 th

e c
on

tra
cto

r t
o m

ee
t 

se
rvi

ce
 ch

an
ge

s a
nd

 de
liv

er
 th

e r
eq

uir
ed

 
lev

el 
of 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. 

Co
ntr

ac
tor

 co
lla

ps
es

 
/ is

 un
ab

le 
to 

pr
ov

ide
 

se
rvi

ce
 

 or
 

 Se
rvi

ce
 le

ve
l 

de
ter

ior
ate

s 
 

• 
Se

rvi
ce

 fa
ils

 / a
dv

er
se

ly 
aff

ec
ted

 
• 

Al
ter

na
tiv

e a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

ne
ed

 to
 be

 m
ad

e 
• 

Inc
re

as
ed

 co
sts

 an
d l

eg
al 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 

• 
He

alt
h r

isk
s 

• 
Di

ss
ati

sfi
ed

 cu
sto

me
rs 

• 
Ce

ns
ur

e b
y a

ud
it/i

ns
pe

cti
on

 
 

6 
E2

 
 

Po
liti

ca
l b

ala
nc

e o
f 

au
tho

rity
 af

fec
tin

g 
de

cis
ion

 m
ak

ing
 

Th
e A

uth
or

ity
 ha

s a
 le

ad
ing

 gr
ou

p w
ith

 a 
cle

ar
 m

ajo
rity

. H
ow

ev
er

, fo
r a

 nu
mb

er
 of

 
ye

ar
s t

he
re

 w
as

 ‘N
o O

ve
ra

ll C
on

tro
l’ 

po
liti

ca
lly

.  
 Th

e s
itu

ati
on

 of
 N

OC
 m

ay
 re

tur
n i

n f
utu

re
 

pe
rio

ds
. 

De
lay

 is
 ta

kin
g 

dif
fic

ult
 / r

ad
ica

l 
de

cis
ion

s  
  

• 
No

 cl
ea

r p
rio

riti
es

 fo
r a

uth
or

ity
, e

ve
ryt

hin
g a

 pr
ior

ity
 

• 
Au

tho
rity

 in
 a 

sta
te 

of 
flu

x 
• 

Sl
ow

 de
cis

ion
 m

ak
ing

 
• 

Ma
ny

 op
tio

ns
 ne

ed
 to

 be
 de

ve
lop

ed
 on

 ea
ch

 is
su

e 
• 

Re
so

ur
ce

s n
ot 

alw
ay

s b
es

t a
llo

ca
ted

 
  

Page 35



 

Ve
rs

io
n 

6 
– 

18
/0

6/
07

 
 

 
 

No
 

Ra
tin

g 
 

Sh
or

t n
am

e 
Vu

ln
er

ab
ilit

y 
Tr

ig
ge

r 
Co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e 
7a

 
E2

 
 

Co
mp

lia
nc

e w
ith

 
re

gu
lat

ion
s 

Th
e C

ab
ine

t s
ys

tem
 le

ad
s t

o g
re

ate
r 

inv
olv

em
en

t o
f m

em
be

rs 
in 

the
 da

y t
o d

ay
 

ru
nn

ing
 of

 th
e A

uth
or

ity
. It

 is
 im

po
rta

nt 
tha

t m
em

be
rs 

inv
olv

ed
 in

 op
er

ati
on

al 
iss

ue
s u

nd
er

sta
nd

 th
e p

ro
ce

ss
es

. 
 Co

un
cil

lor
s a

tte
mp

t to
 de

liv
er

 ch
an

ge
, 

ho
we

ve
r t

he
re

 is
 a 

pe
rce

pti
on

 th
at 

thi
s 

ma
y n

ot 
alw

ay
s b

e d
on

e i
n f

ull
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 pr

op
er

 pr
oc

es
se

s a
nd

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

, w
ith

 po
ss

ibl
e c

or
po

ra
te 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 an

d l
eg

al 
im

pli
ca

tio
ns

. 
 

A 
de

cis
ion

 is
 m

ad
e /

 
ac

tio
n t

ak
en

 w
hic

h 
br

ea
ch

es
 

re
gu

lat
ion

s 
   

• 
Br

ea
ch

 of
 co

rp
or

ate
 go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
• 

Pr
ofe

ss
ion

al 
op

ini
on

s c
ha

lle
ng

ed
 

• 
Pr

ob
ity

 of
 de

cis
ion

 an
d d

ec
isi

on
 m

ak
ing

 pr
oc

es
s 

qu
es

tio
ne

d 
• 

Ad
ve

rse
 ef

fec
t o

n p
er

for
ma

nc
e 

• 
Co

un
cil

 cr
itic

ise
d 

9 
E2

 
 

De
po

t 
Ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 

Th
at 

the
 C

ou
nc

il i
s u

na
ble

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 
ad

eq
ua

te 
ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 fo

r a
ll 

co
ntr

ac
ted

 de
po

t u
se

rs.
 

De
po

t s
ite

s 
dis

po
se

d o
f p

rio
r t

o 
re

pla
ce

me
nt 

fac
ilit

ies
 be

ing
 

av
ail

ab
le.

 

• 
Ad

ve
rse

 im
pa

ct 
on

 se
rvi

ce
 de

liv
er

y 
• 

Inc
re

as
ed

 co
sts

 an
d l

eg
al 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 

• 
Co

un
cil

 cr
itic

ise
d 

10
 

E2
 

 
Re

vis
ed

 
Or

ga
nis

ati
on

al 
St

ru
ctu

re
 

Th
e s

tru
ctu

re
 of

 th
e C

ou
nc

il h
as

 be
en

 
re

vis
ed

 an
d w

ill 
ne

ed
 to

 be
d d

ow
n o

ve
r a

 
pe

rio
d o

f ti
me

. T
he

re
 ar

e c
on

ce
rn

s, 
tha

t 
re

du
cti

on
s i

n t
he

 nu
mb

er
 of

 po
sts

 m
ay

 
re

du
ce

 ca
pa

cit
y a

t s
en

ior
 le

ve
ls.

  
 It i

s i
mp

or
tan

t to
 en

su
re

 th
e A

uth
or

ity
 is

 
no

t to
o i

nte
rn

all
y f

oc
us

se
d, 

wi
th 

too
 m

uc
h 

co
nc

en
tra

tio
n o

n o
pe

ra
tio

na
l is

su
es

, to
 

the
 de

trim
en

t o
f s

tra
teg

ic 
dir

ec
tio

n. 
  

La
ck

 of
 di

re
cti

on
 on

 
ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 

str
ate

gie
s 

• 
Un

cle
ar

 pr
ior

itie
s a

nd
 ob

jec
tiv

es
 

• 
Di

ffic
ult

 to
 ta

ck
le 

ma
jor

 is
su

es
 lik

e c
ha

ng
ing

 cu
ltu

re
 

• 
La

ck
 of

 co
rp

or
ate

 w
or

kin
g 

• 
Co

un
cil

 do
es

 no
t m

ov
e f

or
wa

rd
 

• 
Ex

ter
na

l c
riti

cis
m 

of 
Co

un
cil

 

18
 

E2
 

 
Lo

ss
 or

 th
eft

 of
 

da
ta 

Th
e A

uth
or

ity
 ha

nd
les

 a 
lar

ge
 am

ou
nt 

of 
da

ta.
 E

ith
er

 th
ro

ug
h h

ac
kin

g o
r 

ca
re

les
sn

es
s s

ec
ur

ity
 of

 th
e d

ata
 co

uld
 be

 
co

mp
ro

mi
se

d. 

Da
ta 

he
ld 

by
 th

e 
Co

un
cil

 en
ds

 up
 in

 
ina

pp
ro

pr
iat

e h
an

ds
. 

• 
Br

ea
ch

 of
 co

rp
or

ate
 go

ve
rn

an
ce

 
• 

Inc
re

as
ed

 co
sts

 an
d l

eg
al 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 

• 
Re

pu
tat

ion
 da

ma
ge

d 

Page 36



 

Ve
rs

io
n 

6 
– 

18
/0

6/
07

 
 

 
 

No
 

Ra
tin

g 
 

Sh
or

t n
am

e 
Vu

ln
er

ab
ilit

y 
Tr

ig
ge

r 
Co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e 
19

 
E2

 
 

Pl
an

nin
g s

er
vic

e 
do

es
 no

t im
pr

ov
e 

Pl
an

nin
g w

as
 a 

po
or

ly 
pe

rfo
rm

ing
 ar

ea
 

wi
th 

so
me

 bo
tto

m 
qu

ar
tile

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. 

Ho
we

ve
r, 

sig
nif

ica
nt 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts 

in 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ha
ve

 be
en

 se
en

. 
  

Pl
an

nin
g s

er
vic

e 
do

es
 no

t m
ain

tai
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

• 
La

ck
 of

 m
em

be
r c

on
fid

en
ce

 
• 

CP
A 

sc
or

e a
ffe

cte
d 

• 
Re

pu
tat

ion
 da

ma
ge

d 

2 
D3

 
 

Inc
on

sis
ten

t 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t is

 in
co

ns
ist

en
t a

cro
ss

 th
e 

au
tho

rity
, w

ith
 th

e s
tra

teg
y s

till
 ne

ed
ing

 to
 

be
 em

be
dd

ed
 an

d s
om

e r
es

ist
an

ce
 to

 
ini

tia
tiv

es
. 

  

Inc
on

sis
ten

t 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
co

nti
nu

es
 

  

• 
Au

tho
rity

 fu
rth

er
 be

hin
d i

n t
er

ms
 of

 e-
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t 
• 

Ef
fic

ien
cy

 sa
vin

gs
 no

t m
ad

e o
r c

on
tra

cts
 fa

il 
• 

Be
ne

fits
 of

 pr
oc

ur
em

en
t a

pp
ro

ac
he

s n
ot 

ac
hie

ve
d 

• 
Pr

oc
ur

ed
 se

rvi
ce

 po
or

/no
t v

alu
e f

or
 m

on
ey

 
•  

   C
riti

cis
m 

by
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

15
 

D3
 

 
Si

ck
ne

ss
 ab

se
nc

e 
Le

ve
ls 

of 
sic

kn
es

s a
bs

en
ce

 ar
e n

ow
 

co
ns

ist
en

tly
 re

po
rte

d a
nd

 m
an

ag
ed

 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e a

uth
or

ity
; h

ow
ev

er
 th

er
e h

as
 

be
en

 lit
tle

 su
cc

es
s t

o d
ate

 in
 re

du
cin

g 
ov

er
all

 le
ve

ls 
of 

sic
kn

es
s. 

 

Si
ck

ne
ss

 ab
se

nc
e 

no
t e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

ma
na

ge
d 

• 
St

aff
 ab

se
nc

e i
mp

ac
ts 

on
 ab

ilit
y t

o d
eli

ve
r 

• 
Inc

re
as

ed
 co

sts
 of

 us
ing

 ag
en

cy
 st

aff
 

• 
Ef

fic
ien

cy
 sa

vin
gs

 af
fec

ted
 

• 
Im

pa
ct 

on
 st

aff
 m

or
ale

 
• 

Po
ss

ibl
e l

itig
ati

on
 / c

lai
ms

 
 

16
 

D3
 

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

A 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d s

ys
tem

s a
re

 in
 pl

ac
e b

ut 
ar

e n
ot 

ye
t 

ful
ly 

em
be

dd
ed

 w
ith

in 
the

 au
tho

rity
, w

ith
 

no
 re

al 
cu

ltu
re

 of
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. 
 Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
for

ma
tio

n i
s s

ee
n a

s a
 

me
an

s r
ath

er
 th

an
 an

 en
d. 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
no

t 
ap

pli
ed

 co
ns

ist
en

tly
 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

• 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t tr

ea
ted

 as
 a 

co
mp

lia
nc

e 
ex

er
cis

e  
• 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t d

oe
s n

ot 
oc

cu
r 

• 
Se

rvi
ce

 de
liv

er
y a

dv
er

se
ly 

aff
ec

ted
 

• 
Cr

itic
ism

 fr
om

 in
sp

ec
tio

n /
 au

dit
 

• 
Im

ag
e o

f C
ou

nc
il d

am
ag

ed
 

 
24

 
D3

 
 

Ca
sh

 ba
lan

ce
s 

Re
ten

tio
n o

f la
rg

e r
es

er
ve

s a
nd

 ba
lan

ce
s 

fai
ls 

to 
pr

ov
ide

 be
st 

va
lue

 an
d r

es
tric

ts 
the

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
ke

y s
er

vic
es

. 
 

Ke
y s

er
vic

e 
de

ter
ior

ate
s d

ue
 to

 
lac

k o
f r

es
ou

rce
s. 

• 
Se

rvi
ce

 de
liv

er
y a

dv
er

se
ly 

aff
ec

ted
 

• 
Cr

itic
ism

 fr
om

 in
sp

ec
tio

n /
 au

dit
 

• 
Sl

ipp
ag

e o
n k

ey
 pr

oje
cts

 
• 

Di
ss

ati
sfi

ed
 cu

sto
me

rs 
 

Page 37



 

Ve
rs

io
n 

6 
– 

18
/0

6/
07

 
 

 
 

No
 

Ra
tin

g 
 

Sh
or

t n
am

e 
Vu

ln
er

ab
ilit

y 
Tr

ig
ge

r 
Co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e 
5 

E3
 

 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
Re

or
ga

nis
ati

on
 

wh
ich

 is
 

de
trim

en
tal

 to
 th

e 
Co

un
cil

 an
d 

Co
mm

un
ity

 

Ev
en

 th
ou

gh
 th

er
e a

re
 no

 cu
rre

nt 
pr

op
os

als
 to

 ch
an

ge
 bo

un
da

rie
s i

n E
ss

ex
, 

the
re

 re
ma

ins
 a 

co
nc

er
n t

ha
t th

is 
mi

gh
t 

ch
an

ge
.  

 EF
DC

 is
 cu

rre
ntl

y d
eb

t-f
re

e a
nd

 an
y r

e-
or

ga
nis

ati
on

 m
ay

 in
vo

lve
 ne

igh
bo

ur
ing

 
au

tho
riti

es
 w

ho
 ar

e n
ot 

as
 fin

an
cia

lly
 

se
cu

re
 

 

Re
or

ga
nis

ati
on

 
wh

ich
 is

 de
trim

en
tal

 
to 

the
 C

ou
nc

il a
nd

 
Co

mm
un

ity
 

• 
Ou

tflo
w 

of 
re

so
ur

ce
s f

ro
m 

dis
tric

t 
• 

Ch
an

ge
 of

 fo
cu

s t
o w

ide
r f

oc
us

 
• 

Ex
ist

ing
 pr

ior
itie

s s
top

pe
d 

• 
Pr

oje
cts

 st
op

pe
d /

 de
lay

ed
 

• 
Ch

an
ge

 in
 di

re
cti

on
 

 

7b
 

E3
 

 
Pu

bli
c c

om
me

nts
 at

 
me

mb
er

 le
ve

l m
ay

 
co

mm
it t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
to 

po
lic

ies
 or

 
ac

tio
ns

  

Th
e C

ab
ine

t s
ys

tem
 le

ad
s t

o g
re

ate
r 

inv
olv

em
en

t o
f m

em
be

rs 
in 

the
 da

y t
o d

ay
 

ru
nn

ing
 of

 th
e A

uth
or

ity
. 

 Th
er

e i
s a

 co
nc

er
n, 

ho
we

ve
r, 

at 
wh

at 
co

uld
 be

 pe
rce

ive
d a

s a
 ‘s

ca
tte

rg
un

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
’, p

ar
tic

ula
rly

 ar
ou

nd
 in

div
idu

al 
ini

tia
tiv

es
, i.

e. 
tha

t d
ec

isi
on

s a
re

 
so

me
tim

es
 m

ad
e o

n t
he

 ba
sis

 of
 pu

bli
c 

po
pu

lar
ity

, w
ith

ou
t p

ro
pe

r e
va

lua
tio

n a
nd

 
tha

t c
om

me
nts

 m
ad

e c
ou

ld 
be

 se
en

 as
 

co
mm

itm
en

ts 
no

t o
pin

ion
s. 

 
 

Pr
om

ise
s m

ad
e t

o 
pu

bli
c w

ith
ou

t fi
rm

 
we

igh
t o

f C
ou

nc
il 

be
hin

d t
he

m 
 

• 
Co

un
cil

 po
lic

y ‘
ma

de
 on

 th
e h

oo
f’ 

• 
Co

un
cil

 se
nd

s o
ut 

mi
xe

d m
es

sa
ge

s 
• 

Po
lic

ies
 no

t d
eli

ve
re

d 
• 

Pu
bli

c o
pin

ion
 tu

rn
s a

ga
ins

t th
e C

ou
nc

il 
• 

Po
ss

ibl
e l

eg
al 

im
pli

ca
tio

ns
 of

 de
cis

ion
 

 

14
 

E3
 

 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s 
re

sis
ted

 / d
ela

ye
d 

by
 cu

ltu
re

 of
 

au
tho

rity
 

Th
er

e i
s a

 vi
ew

 th
at 

the
 au

tho
rity

 ne
ed

s t
o 

sig
nif

ica
ntl

y c
ha

ng
e m

ea
ns

 of
 se

rvi
ce

 
de

liv
er

y t
o m

ee
t th

e e
ve

r-c
ha

ng
ing

 
de

ma
nd

s o
f th

e w
ide

r c
om

mu
nit

y, 
an

d t
he

 
re

qu
ire

me
nts

 of
 th

e t
-g

ov
 ag

en
da

.  
 Im

ple
me

nti
ng

 th
is 

wi
ll r

eq
uir

e a
 si

gn
ific

an
t 

cu
ltu

re
 ch

an
ge

 ac
ro

ss
 th

e a
uth

or
ity

, a
nd

 
str

on
g c

on
sis

ten
t le

ad
er

sh
ip 

fro
m 

se
nio

r 
lev

els
 of

 th
e A

uth
or

ity
 

 

Ke
y i

nit
iat

ive
s e

.g.
 

sh
ar

ed
 se

rvi
ce

s 
re

sis
ted

 / d
ela

ye
d b

y 
cu

rre
nt 

cu
ltu

re
 w

ith
in 

the
 au

tho
rity

 

• 
Ini

tia
tiv

es
 / p

lan
s n

ot 
ac

hie
ve

d 
• 

Fa
ilu

re
 to

 m
ak

e s
av

ing
s, 

re
du

ce
 du

pli
ca

tio
ns

 an
d m

ak
e 

co
nti

nu
ou

s i
mp

ro
ve

me
nts

 
• 

Ad
ve

rse
 ef

fec
t o

n p
er

for
ma

nc
e 

• 
Ce

ns
ur

e b
y a

ud
it/i

ns
pe

cti
on

 
• 

Im
ag

e o
f c

ou
nc

il d
am

ag
ed

 

Page 38



 

Ve
rs

io
n 

6 
– 

18
/0

6/
07

 
 

 
 

No
 

Ra
tin

g 
 

Sh
or

t n
am

e 
Vu

ln
er

ab
ilit

y 
Tr

ig
ge

r 
Co

ns
eq

ue
nc

e 
21

 
E3

 
 

Us
e o

f C
ou

nc
il 

as
se

ts 
Th

e c
or

po
ra

te 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 
ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 an

d I
T 

inf
ra

str
uc

tur
e i

s 
no

t a
lw

ay
s u

nd
er

sto
od

 an
d e

nfo
rce

d. 

Co
un

cil
 fa

ils
 to

 m
ak

e 
be

st 
us

e o
f it

’s 
as

se
ts 

• 
Co

un
cil

 ca
nn

ot 
eff

ec
tiv

ely
 re

sp
on

d t
o i

nit
iat

ive
s 

• 
Un

ab
le 

to 
jus

tify
 ac

co
mm

od
ati

on
 ne

ed
s 

• 
Ins

uff
ici

en
t a

ss
ets

 to
 m

ee
t n

ee
ds

 in
 so

me
 ar

ea
s 

• 
Ov

er
 pr

ov
isi

on
 in

 ot
he

r a
re

as
 

 
23

 
E3

 
 

Fr
au

d 
A 

we
ak

ne
ss

 in
 in

ter
na

l c
on

tro
ls 

or
 th

e 
ap

pli
ca

tio
n o

f in
ter

na
l c

on
tro

ls 
or

 cr
im

ina
l 

co
llu

sio
n s

uc
h t

ha
t fr

au
d i

s e
ith

er
 no

t 
pr

ev
en

ted
 or

 no
t d

ete
cte

d. 
 

Si
gn

ific
an

t fr
au

d 
oc

cu
rs 

• 
Lo

ss
 of

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
• 

Da
ma

ge
 to

 C
ou

nc
il’s

 re
pu

tat
ion

 
• 

Ef
fec

t o
n s

taf
f m

or
ale

 
• 

Ha
rm

 U
se

 of
 R

es
ou

rce
s/C

PA
 sc

or
es

 

12
 

D4
 

 
Ge

rsh
on

 – 
ru

le 
ch

an
ge

s 
Th

er
e i

s a
 re

qu
ire

me
nt,

 th
ro

ug
h t

he
 

Ge
rsh

on
 re

vie
w 

to 
ma

ke
 ef

fic
ien

cy
 

sa
vin

gs
 of

 2.
5%

 fo
r e

ac
h o

f th
e n

ex
t 3

 
ye

ar
s. 

 Cu
rre

ntl
y, 

the
 sa

vin
gs

 w
ill 

be
 m

ad
e, 

ho
we

ve
r, 

thi
s i

s p
rim

ar
ily

 th
ro

ug
h c

ur
re

nt 
ru

les
 al

low
ing

 in
ter

es
t o

n s
ale

s o
f a

ss
ets

 
to 

be
 in

clu
de

d 
 

Ru
les

 ch
an

ge
d t

o 
pr

ec
lud

e t
his

 
• 

Sa
vin

gs
 ne

ed
 to

 be
 m

ad
e f

ro
m 

oth
er

 ar
ea

s 
• 

Se
rvi

ce
s s

uff
er

 fr
om

 la
ck

 of
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

• 
Pu

bli
c d

iss
ati

sfa
cti

on
 w

ith
 C

ou
nc

il s
er

vic
es

 
• 

Co
un

cil
 re

pu
tat

ion
 da

ma
ge

d 
• 

Ce
ns

ur
e b

y a
ud

it a
nd

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
 

22
 

D4
 

 
Ke

y p
ar

tne
rsh

ip 
fai

ls 
Th

e C
ou

nc
il i

s i
nv

olv
ed

 in
 a 

ple
tho

ra
 of

 
mu

lti 
ag

en
cy

 pa
rtn

er
sh

ips
 e.

g. 
LS

P,
 bu

t 
the

se
 do

n’t
 al

wa
ys

 ha
ve

 cl
ea

r g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts 

wi
th 

re
lat

ed
 do

cu
me

nta
tio

n 
thi

n o
n t

he
 gr

ou
nd

 
   

Ke
y p

ar
tne

rsh
ip 

fai
ls 

• 
Re

lat
ion

sh
ips

 w
ith

 ot
he

r b
od

ies
 de

ter
ior

ate
 

• 
Cl

aw
ba

ck
 of

 gr
an

ts 
• 

Un
for

es
ee

n a
cc

ou
nta

bil
itie

s a
nd

 lia
bil

itie
s f

or
 th

e C
ou

nc
il 

• 
Ce

ns
ur

e b
y a

ud
it/i

ns
pe

cti
on

 
• 

Ad
ve

rse
 im

pa
ct 

on
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
 

 

Page 39



 

Ve
rs

io
n 

6 
– 

18
/0

6/
07

 
 

 
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

– 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
s 

 
R

IS
K

 N
O

. 
C

U
R

R
EN

T 
R

IS
K

 S
C

O
R

E 
TA

R
G

ET
 R

IS
K

 
SC

O
R

E 
C

LU
ST

ER
 N

A
M

E 

3,
 4

 
B

 1
/B

 2
 

C
 3

 
E

as
t o

f E
ng

la
nd

 P
la

n 
1,

 1
3 

B
 2

 
C

 3
 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t i

n 
ke

y 
ar

ea
s 

8 
C

 2
 

C
 3

 
B

us
in

es
s 

C
on

tin
ui

ty
 P

la
nn

in
g 

11
 

A
 3

 
A

 4
 

Lo
ca

l h
ou

si
ng

 n
ee

ds
 

17
 

D
 2

 
E

 2
 

C
ap

ita
l r

ec
ei

pt
s 

sp
en

t o
n 

no
n 

re
ve

nu
e 

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
as

se
ts

 
20

 
D

 2
 

E
 2

 
K

ey
 C

on
tra

ct
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

     

Page 40



 

Ve
rs

io
n 

6 
– 

18
/0

6/
07

 
 

 
 

R
is

k 
N

o.
 

Ex
is

tin
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

/a
ct

io
ns

 to
 

ad
dr

es
s 

ris
k 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
co

nt
ro

ls
/a

ct
io

ns
 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
ac

tio
n 

C
rit

ic
al

 s
uc

ce
ss

 
fa

ct
or

s 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
s 

R
ev

ie
w

 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y

K
ey

 d
at

e 

3,
 4

 
O

bj
ec

tio
ns

 m
ad

e 
to

 
dr

af
t p

la
n 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

ab
le

 lo
bb

yi
ng

 
un

de
rta

ke
n.

 

W
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

co
m

e 
ap

pa
re

nt
 w

he
n 

th
e 

ne
xt

 v
er

si
on

 o
f t

he
 

pl
an

 is
 is

su
ed

. 

R
is

k 
3 

– 
W

ai
tin

g 
fo

r 
ou

tc
om

e.
 

 R
is

k 
4 

– 
M

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 

ot
he

r C
ou

nc
ils

 

P
la

nn
in

g 
&

 
E

co
no

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

P
or

tfo
lio

 H
ol

de
r 

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
E

co
no

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 
pl

an
ne

d 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

ne
w

 d
w

el
lin

gs
. T

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

re
ta

in
s 

co
nt

ro
l o

f t
he

 
de

liv
er

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
31

/0
3/

08
 

1,
 1

3 
A

 n
um

be
r o

f 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t a
nd

 
re

te
nt

io
n 

in
iti

at
iv

es
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pu

rs
ue

d,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

ak
in

g 
m

ar
ke

t s
up

pl
em

en
ts

 
av

ai
la

bl
e.

 T
he

 tr
ai

ne
e 

sc
he

m
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 
pa

rti
cu

la
rly

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l. 

S
om

e 
su

cc
es

s 
in

 
re

cr
ui

tin
g 

to
 k

ey
 

ar
ea

s,
 e

.g
. I

C
T,

 
P

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

W
or

ks
 

U
ni

t. 

Fu
rth

er
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 te

st
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 

m
ar

ke
t s

up
pl

em
en

ts
. 

Fi
na

nc
e 

&
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

up
po

rt 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
up

po
rt 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
  

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 le
ve

l 
of

 v
ac

an
ci

es
. 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
N

on
e 

8 
M

os
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

al
re

ad
y 

ha
ve

 b
us

in
es

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 p
la

ns
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

an
d 

a 
se

pa
ra

te
 

flu
 p

an
de

m
ic

 p
la

n 
is

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

 

A
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
la

n 
is

 
no

w
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

m
as

s 
va

cc
in

at
io

n 
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

P
C

T.
 

Fu
rth

er
 d

ev
el

op
 fl

u 
pa

nd
em

ic
 p

la
n 

an
d 

ke
ep

 o
th

er
 b

us
in

es
s 

co
nt

in
ui

ty
 p

la
ns

 u
p 

to
 

da
te

. 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 P

or
tfo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

  

H
av

in
g 

pl
an

s 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 

pr
ov

ed
 fi

t f
or

 
pu

rp
os

e 
ei

th
er

 b
y 

ev
en

ts
 o

r e
xt

er
na

l 
sc

ru
tin

y.
 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
N

on
e 

Page 41



 

Ve
rs

io
n 

6 
– 

18
/0

6/
07

 
 

 
 

R
is

k 
N

o.
 

Ex
is

tin
g 

co
nt

ro
ls

/a
ct

io
ns

 to
 

ad
dr

es
s 

ris
k 

Ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
co

nt
ro

ls
/a

ct
io

ns
 

R
eq

ui
re

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
ct

io
n 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
ac

tio
n 

C
rit

ic
al

 s
uc

ce
ss

 
fa

ct
or

s 
an

d 
m

ea
su

re
s 

R
ev

ie
w

 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y

K
ey

 d
at

e 

20
 

S
ys

te
m

s 
fo

r c
on

tra
ct

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

in
 p

la
ce

.  
C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
pl

an
s 

ex
is

t t
o 

de
al

 w
ith

 
co

nt
ra

ct
 fa

ilu
re

. 

C
on

tra
ct

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d.
 

B
us

in
es

s 
co

nt
in

ui
ty

 
pl

an
ni

ng
 h

as
 p

ro
ve

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

in
 w

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 

B
ot

h 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

fo
r 

le
is

ur
e 

an
d 

w
as

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t r

eq
ui

re
 

cl
os

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g.

  

Le
is

ur
e 

&
 Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e 
P

or
tfo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
P

or
tfo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r 

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 

S
tre

et
 S

ce
ne

 
 

A
 b

as
ke

t o
f k

ey
 P

I’s
 

ar
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r t

he
 

le
is

ur
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

. 
    Im

pr
ov

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
re

cy
cl

in
g 

ta
rg

et
s.

 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
      Q

ua
rte

rly
 

31
/0

3/
08

 
      31

/0
3/

08
 

11
 

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t f
or

 %
 o

f 
al

l n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

to
 b

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 
ho

us
in

g.
 H

ou
si

ng
 

S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

an
el

 h
as

 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 is
su

e.
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ap
ita

l 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

fo
r 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
. 

C
ur

re
nt

 ta
rg

et
s 

fo
r 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. 

 

A
gr

ee
d 

sc
he

m
es

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
 a

nd
 

ne
w

 s
ch

em
es

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r 

ad
di

tio
na

l f
un

ds
. 

H
ou

si
ng

 P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f H
ou

si
ng

 

A
ch

ie
vi

ng
 ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 

ho
us

in
g.

 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
31

/0
3/

08
 

17
 

Fi
ve

 y
ea

r c
ap

ita
l 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 S
ur

pl
us

 
as

se
ts

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

di
sp

os
ed

 o
f. 

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
to

 d
at

e 
as

 
ev

en
 w

ith
 £

50
M

 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

ov
er

 5
 y

ea
rs

 m
or

e 
th

an
 £

17
M

 o
f u

sa
bl

e 
re

ce
ip

ts
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 

at
 e

nd
 o

f p
er

io
d.

 
  

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

 
re

ve
nu

e 
co

ns
eq

ue
nc

es
 o

f a
ll 

ne
w

 c
ap

ita
l s

ch
em

es
 

an
d 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 

di
sp

os
e 

of
 s

ur
pl

us
 

as
se

ts
. 

Fi
na

nc
e 

&
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

up
po

rt 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r 
 C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f 

ad
eq

ua
te

 c
ap

ita
l 

an
d 

re
ve

nu
e 

ba
la

nc
es

. 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 
31

/0
3/

08
 

 

Page 42



Report to the Finance and Performance 
Management Cabinet Committee 
 
Date of meeting:  17 March 2008. 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance, Performance Management & Corporate Support Services. 
 
Subject:  Sundry Debtors – Policy and Performance. 
 
Responsible Officer:   Brian Moldon  (01992-564606). 
                                                                        
Democratic Services Officer:  Gary Woodhall (01992-564470). 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 

(1) To consider and adopt the updated Sundry Income and Debt policy; and 
 
(2) To note the performance of the sundry debt function. 

 
Introduction: 
 
1. This Committee previously adopted the Sundry Income and Debt Policy on 29 
January 2007 and the policy is subject to an annual review. 
 
2. This report seeks to further embed the collection of sundry debts into the Council and 
to provide Members with information on how the Council performed in relation to the 
collection of sundry debts in the financial year 2006/07. 
  
Sundry Income and Debt Policy: 
 
3. This policy should be reviewed and updated on an annual basis and so is presented 
here for Members consideration.  The policy has been updated to reflect the comments 
received from Finance, Legal and Internal Audit and the experience of the policies first year of 
operation. 
 
4. Following an Internal Audit report on sundry debtors in March 2007, it was 
recommended that a formal sundry debtor write off policy be developed which identifies the 
process by which all write offs must be raised, authorised and managed.  This is now 
included within Appendix C of the Debt Policy. 
 
Performance Management: 
 
5. Following the adverse comments on the collection of debt in the 2006 Use of 
Resource assessment.  Finance and Legal services undertook a review of how the Council 
collected the sundry debts.  The outcome of this review was a new debt recovery procedure 
that was introduced into the Council on 1 November 2006. 
 
6. The table below shows the improvement made by the Council in the collection rate of 
the sundry debts over a number of years: 
 

Financial Year 2002/03 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07 
Collected for the year 54.11% 70.23% 72.07% 77.66% 80.38% 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 43



7. To continue this improvement it is important that all services actively engage in the 
collection of sundry debts. This has been assisted with the introduction of the Sundry Income 
and Debt policy last January and from training sessions organised by Finance and Legal. 
 
8. Within the Sundry Income and Debt Policy there are a number of performance 
measures that were approved by Members. This report will show the first year results of this 
performance for Members to note. 
 

 2006/07
Level of debt as at 31st March £2,188,500.72

Level of irrecoverable debt provision as at 31st March £985,268

Average number of days, debts are outstanding for invoices raised 
within the preceding 12 months 

53.7 days

Average number of days, debts are outstanding for all invoices 106.5 days

By number 58.16%Percentage of debt collected in 42 days 
(42 days represents the number of days before 
legal are involved in the recovery process) By value 50.79%

By number 69.18%Percentage of debt collected in 60 days 
(60 days represents the number of days before a 
10% contribution can be requested by Finance or 
Legal – see 9.2)  

By value 61.44%

Aged debt analysis (see appendix 1) 

Analysis of write offs by service (see appendix 1) 
  
9. These figures have been presented at this time so that they can be considered as part 
of the annual review of the policy.  A further report will be made to the June meeting when the 
data for 2007/08 will also be available to allow a more meaningful analysis and comparison. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
10. A considerable amount of work has been undertaken in producing and updating the 
Sundry Income & Debt Policy and this now needs to re re-adopted by Members to ensure the 
Council demonstrates that it has embraced and embedded improvements in debt collection 
procedures. 
 

Page 44



A
ge

d 
D

eb
t A

na
ly

si
s a

s a
t 3

1st
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

7 

0-
30

 D
ay

s 
31

-6
0 

D
ay

s 
61

-1
80

 D
ay

s 
18

1-
36

5 
D

ay
s 

1-
5 

Y
ea

rs
 

T
ot

al
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

£ 
N

o 
£ 

N
o 

£ 
N

o 
£ 

N
o 

£ 
N

o 
£ 

N
o 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
18

,4
97

.5
1 

16
 

2,
69

5.
61

 
7 

31
,8

48
.1

8 
27

 
10

,4
16

.2
5 

22
 

52
,8

37
.9

5 
84

 
11

6,
29

5.
50

 
15

6 

Fi
na

nc
e 

9,
20

7.
15

 
3 

72
.8

0 
1 

69
.8

4 
1 

9,
87

8.
91

 
39

 
17

,5
95

.7
7 

55
 

36
,8

24
.4

7 
99

 

H
ou

si
ng

 
B

en
ef

its
27

,0
94

.9
3 

22
 

82
,4

21
.1

1 
43

 
73

,9
30

.6
4 

72
 

10
7,

82
5.

71
 

10
0 

53
5,

57
3.

49
 

28
2 

82
6,

84
5.

88
 

51
9 

H
um

an
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

0 
 

0 
20

5.
00

 
1 

 
0 

2,
06

2.
77

 
10

 
2,

26
7.

77
 

11
 

H
ou

si
ng

  
4,

01
4.

76
 

48
 

-6
63

.1
6 

50
 

3,
32

9.
87

 
13

7 
71

,2
57

.4
9 

27
9 

94
,9

87
.6

7 
15

22
 

17
2,

92
6.

63
 

20
36

 

Le
ga

l, 
A

dm
in

 
&

Es
ta

te
s

48
2,

39
1.

06
 

19
8 

7,
21

6.
50

 
5 

30
,9

28
.8

8 
26

 
28

,9
93

.8
1 

22
 

12
,5

97
.2

3 
12

 
56

2,
12

7.
48

 
26

3 

Le
is

ur
e 

27
0,

30
2.

26
 

46
 

53
4.

37
 

4 
32

,4
55

.1
5 

1 
 

0 
21

,3
87

.7
8 

6 
32

4,
67

9.
56

 
57

 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
25

,9
30

.9
4 

29
 

41
,6

14
.5

9 
13

 
2,

35
4.

52
 

5 
3,

64
9.

82
 

5 
53

,7
28

.7
4 

57
 

12
7,

27
8.

61
 

10
9 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
&

 
D

em
oc

ra
tic

6,
00

0.
00

 
1 

11
,5

00
.0

0 
2 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

17
,5

00
.0

0 
3 

W
or

ks
 

1,
40

6.
42

 
14

 
40

.0
0 

1 
 

0 
 

0 
30

8.
40

 
1 

1,
75

4.
82

 
16

 

T
ot

al
 

84
4,

84
5.

03
 

37
7 

14
5,

43
1.

82
 

12
6 

17
5,

12
2.

08
 

27
0 

23
2,

02
1.

99
 

46
7 

79
1,

07
9.

80
 

20
29

 
2,

18
8,

50
0.

72
 

32
69

 

 
W

ri
te

 O
ff

 b
y 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

N
um

be
r 

of
 In

vo
ic

es
A

m
ou

nt
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

16
1

£4
4,

41
2.

95
Fi

na
nc

e 
6

£4
94

.5
6

H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
its

 
57

£5
1,

73
0.

15
H

ou
si

ng
 

35
£2

,1
24

.6
6

Le
ga

l, 
A

dm
in

 &
 E

st
at

es
 

1
£1

,0
50

.0
0

Le
is

ur
e 

35
£9

,2
03

.9
6

Pl
an

ni
ng

 
1

£4
18

.0
7

T
ot

al
 

29
6

£1
09

,4
34

.3
5

 

Appendix 1

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 17 

 

 
 
 
Sundry Income & Debt Policy 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Version 2 – March 2008

Page 47



Page 2 of 17 

 

 Contents  

Section  Page 

1 Introduction 3 

2 Exclusions 4 

3 Key Objectives of Fees and Charges 4 

4 Responsibilities 4 

5 Invoicing 5 

6 Payment Methods  6 

7 Credit Limits  6 

8 Credit Terms  6 

9 Accounting Arrangements 7 

10 Collection  8 

11 Queries/Disputes 9 

12 Litigation 9 

13 Credit Notes 9 

14 Write Offs 9 

15 Interest Loss 9 

16 Debt Management 10 

17 Monitoring 10 

18 Review 10 

Appendix A Debt Recovery Procedure 11 

Appendix B Recovery Flowchart 13 

Appendix C Write Off Policy for Sundry Debts 16 
 

Page 48



Page 3 of 17 

 

1 Introduction 

1.1 This Policy shall be known as “The Sundry Income & Debt Policy” 
and covers the collection of sundry debt due to Epping Forest District 
Council.   

1.2 It is the Council’s policy to recover all collectable debt owed to it.   
With this overall objective in mind this policy aims to: 

a) Maximise the Council’s Income 

b) Reduce the time taken to collect charges 

c) Reduce the level of debt owed to the Council and hence its 
provision for bad debts, and 

d) Reduce the incidence of debt that cannot be collected. 

1.3 This Policy supports these aims by:  

a) Promoting ownership of debts by service providers 

b) Ensuring wherever possible that collection of the fee or charge 
involved takes place prior to the service being provided so that 
credit is only given when it is essential to do so 

c) Promoting a system of active credit control 

d) Ensuring invoicing procedures are carried out on an accurate 
and timely basis 

e) Requiring that evidence to support the invoice exists in the 
form of an order or other written contract 

f) Encouraging debtors to pay promptly, and 

g) Making collection and enforcement activity more efficient. 

1.4 The Policy aim is to achieve the following rates of collection in terms 
of both numbers and value of invoices: 

 a) 85% of debt to be collected within 42 days of the invoice being 
issued 

b) 90% of debt to be collected within 60 days of the invoice being 
issued. 

1.5 The Senior Finance Officer will review the targets given above each 
year and report on performance to the Finance & Performance 
Management Cabinet Committee. 

1.6 The Council will publicise the fact that it has this policy and that it 
intends to pursue the collection and recovery of all debts owed to it. 

  

Page 49



Page 4 of 17 

2. Exclusions 

2.1 The following areas are excluded from this policy as they are subject 
to their own legislation / regulations:  

a) Council Tax 

b) National Non Domestic Rates 

c) Housing Rents 

d) Housing and Council Tax Benefits Overpayments 

e) Parking penalties. 

  

3. Key Objectives of Fees and Charges 

3.1 The fee or charge imposed by the Council should be fair in relation to 
the goods and/or services provided. 

3.2 The charge should reflect the principles outlined in the appropriate 
charging policy and in the Council’s Financial Regulations. 

3.3 The charge should, depending on legislation, always at least cover 
the cost of providing the goods or service and the costs of collection, 
unless the Council has taken a policy decision to subsidise the 
service. 

3.4 The charge should wherever possible be obtained in advance of the 
goods and/or services being provided.  If not, and where appropriate, 
the prior written agreement of the person receiving the goods and 
services should be obtained to pay for the goods and/or service. 

3.5 The charge should be collectable. 

3.6 Fees and charges must be reviewed at least annually.  

3.7 There should be a clear and prompt billing and collection process. 

3.8 There should be a clear and consistent council-wide approach to the 
giving of credit and the collection of debt that is led by this policy. 

3.9 There should be a system that ensures Services only retain credit for 
an invoice if the income is actually collected. 

  

4. Responsibilities 

4.1 Directors must ensure that:  

a) Financial Regulations in relation to the collection of sundry 
debt are adhered to 

 

Page 50



Page 5 of 17 

b) The parts of this policy that apply to their service are correctly 
followed 

c) They proactively support the achievement of corporate targets 
for debt collection 

d) Budget Managers are fully appraised of their responsibilities 

e) Relevant systems and procedures are put in place 

f) Staff involved in the debt collection process are appropriately 
trained, and 

g) The successfulness of training is kept under continuous 
review. 

4.2 The Director of Finance & ICT is charged with the responsibility of 
providing central support and the relevant electronic processes 
needed to ensure this policy can be adhered to. 

  

5. Invoicing 

5.1 Services are responsible for raising invoices in respect of the goods 
and/or services they supply on credit. 

5.2 An invoice should be raised within 10 working days of the goods 
and/or services being supplied. 

5.3 Services should ensure that the names and addresses of the debtors 
are up to date and correct. 

5.4 Amounts due to the Council should not generally be held in holding 
accounts.  However, where it is unavoidable for a holding account to 
be used then that account must be cleared on not less than a 10 
working day cycle. 

5.5 An invoice should not be raised: 

a) For less than £10, unless it is a statutory charge (Fees and 
charges below this level should be collected in advance by 
other methods.)   

b) If an order (or equivalent) has not been received 

c) When it cannot be proven that the goods and/or services have 
been supplied 

d) When the amount due is not still owed 

e) If a debt is already bad or doubtful 

f) Where a potential debtor fails to obtain credit limit approval, or 

g) Where a previous invoice for the same goods or service has 
already been credited.  

Page 51



Page 6 of 17 

5.6 For periodic charges, a direct debit should, wherever possible, be set 
up in advance of the service being provided. 

5.7 An invoice must not be raised to provide a hidden subsidy. 

5.8 An invoice must not be raised to artificially enhance income targets. 

  

6. Payment Methods 

 Invoices should be able to be paid by all of the following methods: 

a) Cheque 

b) Direct Debit 

c) Debit card 

d) Standing order 

e) BACS payment 

f) Cash 

g) By telephone, and 

h) Via the Internet. 

  

7 Credit Limits 

7.1 For goods and/or services being supplied and costing over £10,000 a 
credit check must be run on all customers except those in the public 
sector. 

7.2 Credit must not be given to previous customers who have been 
consistently late payers or have not paid at all.  

7.3 Preferential credit limits must not be agreed for any customer. 

  

8. Credit Terms 

8.1 The Council should aim to collect monies owing to it fully and 
promptly. 

8.2 Payment terms should only be granted where the debtor is not able 
to settle the debt in full in one payment. On receipt of an invoice a 
debtor can make arrangements to clear the account by weekly, 
fortnightly or monthly instalments. These payments should be by 
direct debit wherever possible. 

8.3 Only Legal Recovery and Central Debtor Teams can arrange 
payment terms with the debtor. 

Page 52



Page 7 of 17 

8.4 The Central Debtors Team should consider withdrawing payment 
terms if a debtor fails to honour the agreement entered into. 

8.5 The following table should be used as guidance when arranging 
credit.  However, no terms can be agreed over twelve months. 

 

Value Terms (from date of invoice) 
Debts below £500 No more then 3 months 

Debts below £1,500 No more than 6 months 

Debts below £2,500 No more than 9 months 

Debt above £2,500 No more than 12 months 

 
8.6 In order for a debtor to receive more than 3 months credit, a detailed 

income and expenditure sheet should be completed for their case to 
be considered.  The Senior Finance Officer should be consulted on 
all these cases. 

8.7 The Senior Finance Officer must review the monetary values 
contained in this section on an annual basis.  When it is considered 
that those values should be changed the new figures shall only apply 
once the Director of Finance & ICT has agreed them in writing. 

  

9. Accounting Arrangements 

9.1 The Service will receive the credit when an invoice is raised. 

9.2 If the invoice is paid within 60 days the Service will retain the credit. 
No internal invoice will be raised to the originating Service to meet 
costs of recovering the debt.     

9.3 If the invoice is not paid within 60 days an internal invoice will be 
raised by the Central Debtors Team when payment is subsequently 
received. This will be issued to the originating Service requesting 
payment of 10% of the value of the original invoice to cover recovery 
costs incurred in collecting the debt.    

9.4 The 10% contribution will be paid to Legal if the debt is being dealt 
with by Legal, or to Finance if the debt is being pursued through a 
debt agency. 

9.5 In all cases the 10% contribution to costs arrived at by the calculation 
at 9.3 above shall be cash limited to a maximum figure of £3,000. 

 

 
 

 

Page 53



Page 8 of 17 

10. Collection 

10.1 A written reminder should be sent for all invoices unpaid after 21 
days. 

10.2 If after a further 7 days (i.e. 28 days from date of invoice) the account 
is unpaid a final reminder notice should be issued. 

10.3 If after a further 7 days (i.e. 35 days) the account is unpaid a letter 
before action letter should be issued. 

10.4 After a further 7 days (i.e. 42 days) if an invoice is still outstanding it 
should be passed to Legal for county court action for debts over 
£100 or referred to a debt collection agency for debts below £100. 

10.5 If an invoice of £5,000 or more is unpaid after 34 days (the service 
will receive a task on AIMS advising that the debt remains 
outstanding) a telephone reminder should be made to the debtor by 
the relevant Service to confirm receipt of the invoice and to identify 
any queries relating to it.  In cases where it proves difficult to make 
contact with a private individual during normal working hours 
telephone calls should also be made between 6pm and 8pm Monday 
to Friday. 

10.6 The Council should employ two debt collection agencies with the 
workload being split in the ratio 60:40 between them. 

10.7 Each year the Senior Finance Officer should review the performance 
of the two agencies and the best performing one should receive the 
60% workload in the following year. 

10.8 Once a case has been referred to the debt collection agency any 
payment arrangement the debtor enters into must be made directly 
to that agency. 

10.9 If an account is referred for action to a debt collection agency and the 
case is then withdrawn, any fees incurred will be charged to the 
originating service. 

10.10 Recovery action can be halted at any part of the process if the debtor 
enters into payment terms to clear the debt by instalments. 

10.11 Recovery action can be halted at any part of the process if the 
originating Service decides not to pursue recovery for the good of the 
service.  When this happens the originating Service must bear the 
cost.  Any adjustment to the amount invoiced must be requested by 
submitting a write off request to the Central Debtors Team by the 
Director. 

10.12 The debt recovery procedure can be seen at Appendix A. 

 

 

 

Page 54



Page 9 of 17 

11 Queries and Disputes 

11.1 If there is a dispute the Service that raised the invoice must attempt 
to resolve the matter within 30 days of the dispute being registered. 

11.2 The Senior Finance Officer will monitor accounts on hold on a 
quarterly basis 

  

12 Litigation 

12.1 All debts outstanding above £100 should be referred to Legal with 
the necessary documentation being provided by the service. 

  

13 Credit Notes 

13.1 In conjunction with financial regulations there must be a clear 
distinction between raising a credit note and writing off a debt. 

13.2 A credit note to cancel or reduce a debt must only be issued to: 

a) Correct a factual inaccuracy 

b) Correct an administrative error 

c) Process a discount granted by the Director where the account 
was originated. 

13.3 Only authorised staff at the discretion of service managers should 
issue credit notes. 

13.4 A credit note should only be issued when the credit request memo is 
signed by an authorised signatory and an explanation for the credit 
note is stated in every case. 

  

14 Write Offs 

14.1 All write offs need to adhere to the Council’s Write Off Policy for 
Sundry Debts.  This can be seen at Appendix C. 

14.2 The following officers have delegated powers to write off bad debts 
as follows: 

 a) Director of Finance & ICT for debts under £1,000 

b) Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support 
Services Portfolio Holder for debts of £1,000 and above. 

  

15 Interest Loss 

Page 55



Page 10 of 17 

15.1 If it is evidenced that any action by a Service leads to a significant 
detrimental effect on the Council’s cash flow by not following this 
policy, the Director of Finance & ICT should consider imposing a 
charge on that service equivalent to the lost interest incurred.  

15.2 A loss of £500 should be considered as being significant. 

  

16 Debt Management 

16.1 The following data should be used to monitor performance against 
targets and timescales set for each Service: 

 a) Level of debt  

b) Level of irrecoverable debt provision 

c) Number of days debts are outstanding – “debtor days” for 
invoices raised within the preceding 12 months 

d) Number of days debts are outstanding – “debtor days” for all 
invoices 

e) Number and value of disputed accounts and those where 
action is on hold 

f) Percentage of debt by number and value collected in 42 days 

g) Percentage of debt by number and value collected in 60 days 

h) Aged debt analysis by value, and 

i) Analysis of write offs by income section and age 

  

17 Monitoring 

17.1 The Senior Finance Officer is authorised to: 

a) Carry out the central monitoring of this policy, 

b) Agree amendments to the policy for operational, efficiency 
and effectiveness purposes, 

c) Report to Finance & Performance Management Cabinet 
Committee any major issues arising from the above. 

  

18 Review 

18.1 The Policy once approved and implemented will be subject to an 
annual review. 

Page 56



Debt Recovery Procedure  Appendix A 

Page 11 of 17 
 

1 FINANCE RECOVERY 

1.1 When an invoice is being raised the recovery profile is defaulted to 
‘New Debt Recovery’ (code being ‘DR’).  This recovery profile should 
be used for all invoices except for Estates, this being ‘ES’ (Estate 
Debts).  If the debt is for an employee of the Council then recovery 
profile should be ‘SD’ (Staff Debts). 

1.2 The recovery profile dictates the set of events.  The flow chart of 
each of these profiles can be seen at Appendix B.   

1.3 During any stage of the finance recovery:  
 
a) If full payment is received, the debt is closed; 
b) If an offer to pay in instalments is made, Finance will be 

responsible for setting up and monitoring the payments.  Before 
the arrangement is agreed the debtor will need to sign and return 
one copy of the agreement; 

c) If the debtor breaches the agreement they will receive one 
reminder letter.  If a further breach of the agreement is then 
made, the agreement will be terminated and passed back to the 
service for them to instruct legal to take action (copy of the 
agreement should be forwarded to the service) 

d) If the debtor disputes the debt, before it reaches Legal, Finance 
will refer this to the service to resolve.   Finance will put a hold (up 
to one month) on collecting the debt until the service informs 
Finance with what action to take i.e. resume; cancel; adjust the 
debt.   

 
2 LEGAL RECOVERY 

2.1 Whilst the debt is with Legal: 
 
a) If the debtor asks to make arrangement to pay the debt, Legal will 

negotiate the arrangement and Finance will set up the 
arrangement.  The arrangement will then be monitored by 
Finance and Legal will close their file.  If the arrangement is 
breached after one reminder Finance will refer the debt back to 
Legal to re-open the file. 

b) If the debtor disputes the debt, following Pre Action Protocol 
Letter, Legal will close the file and refer the debtor back to the 
Client Service. 

c) Legal WILL only re-open their file, if either Finance or Client 
Service request Court action to be continued and evidence is 
provided that shows that the dispute has been discussed with the 
debtor. 

Page 57



Debt Recovery Procedure  Appendix A 

Page 12 of 17 
 

 
d) If the debtor raises a Defence following the service of the Claim 

Form then Legal will not close their file, but liaise with the Client 
Service to receive instructions on how to proceed.  Client Service 
must comply with any time limits imposed by Legal, as the matter 
will now be in the control of the Court and its timetable. 

 
3 SERVICE RESPONSIBILITY 

3.1 In order for all parties to keep up to date with the latest developments 
services should arrange regular meetings with Legal and Finance.  

3.2 Services will receive the following monthly reports from Finance and 
Legal.  It is the service responsibility to review these reports and to 
take action on all necessary debts. 

 a) Aged debt reports – this will show the amount in value and 
numbers outstanding by period 

b) Debts to be referred to Legal – this will show the debts where the 
client service has not yet instructed legal to take Court action 
against the debtor 

c) Debts placed on hold – this will show the debts where they are 
put on hold until the service informs Finance of the outcome 

d) Listing of cases currently being managed by Legal and where 
they are with each case 

e) Any other specific report to a client 

 
 
 

Page 58



 

 

 

< 
£1

0

Recovery Flow Chart                   Appendix B 

R
ec

ov
er

y 
D

R
 =

 N
ew

 D
eb

t R
ec

ov
er

y 
                

 
 

 
    

R
em

in
de

r 1
 s

en
t a

fte
r 2

1d
ay

s 
(0

2-
X1

 R
em

in
de

r 1
) 

R
em

in
de

r 2
 s

en
t a

fte
r 2

8 
da

ys
 

(0
2-

X2
 R

em
in

de
r 2

) 

D
eb

t 
Va

lu
e

R
em

in
de

r 3
 s

en
t a

fte
r 3

5 
da

ys
 

(0
2-

X4
 R

em
in

de
r 3

) 

Ta
sk

 s
en

t t
o 

S
er

vi
ce

 a
fte

r 3
4 

da
ys

 
(0

2-
X

3 
N

ot
ic

e 
to

 s
er

vi
ce

 -
de

bt
 o

ve
rd

ue
) 

D
eb

t i
s 

re
fe

rre
d 

to
 D

eb
t A

ge
nc

y 
(0

2-
D

1 
S

en
d 

de
bt

 to
 D

eb
t A

ge
nc

y)
 

 

= 
/ <

 £
10

0

 

> 
£1

00

Ta
sk

 s
en

t t
o 

S
er

vi
ce

 a
fte

r 4
2 

da
ys

 
(0

2-
X

5 
A

ut
o 

R
eq

ue
st

 fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 to

 in
st

ru
ct

 
le

ga
l) 

In
vo

ic
e 

is
 ra

is
ed

 a
nd

 p
rin

te
d 

(0
1-

01
 B

ill 
Is

su
ed

) 

C
om

bi
ne

 
V

al
ue

 

S
en

d 
de

bt
 to

 D
eb

t A
ge

nc
y 

(0
2-

D
2 

D
eb

t s
en

t t
o 

D
eb

t A
ge

nc
y)

 

>£
10

0 

 

>£
10

 b
ut

 <
 £

10
0

D
eb

t i
s 

re
fe

rre
d 

to
 S

er
vi

ce
 

(0
2-

D
3 

M
an

ua
l R

eq
ue

st
 fo

r s
er

vi
ce

 to
 

in
st

ru
ct

 L
eg

al
) 

D
eb

t t
o 

be
 w

rit
te

n 
of

f 
(0

2-
D

4
R

eq
ue

st
fo

rs
er

vi
ce

to
w

rit
e

of
f)

Le
ga

l t
o 

in
pu

t e
ve

nt
 

(0
2-

LE
 D

eb
t b

ei
ng

 m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

Le
ga

l) 

E
ve

nt
 

Ta
sk

 

02
-L

F 
– 

R
eq

ue
st

 fi
na

nc
e 

to
 s

et
 u

p 
pa

ym
en

t 
02

-L
S

 –
 D

eb
to

r
di

sp
ut

e 
re

fe
r t

o 
se

rv
ic

e 

Page 13 of 15 
Page 59



Appendix B 

Page 14 of 17 

Recovery SD = Staff Debts 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 

Recovery ES = Commercial Rent 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Reminder 1 sent after 21days 
(02-X1 Reminder 1) 

Reminder 2 sent after 28 days 
(02-X2 Reminder2) 

Task sent to Service after 34 days 
(02-X5 Request for service to instruct legal)

Invoice is raised and printed 
(01-01 Bill Issued) 

Reminder 1 sent after 42days 
(02-X1 Reminder 1) 

Reminder 2 sent after 56 days 
(02-X2 Reminder2) 

Invoice is raised and printed 
(01-01 Bill Issued) 

Reminder 3 sent after 63 days 
(02-X4 Reminder 3) 

Task sent to Service after 70 days 
(02-X5 Request for service to instruct legal)

Page 60



Appendix B 

Page 15 of 17 

 

Event Action Timescale to 
achieve 
action 

On receipt of 
instruction 
from service 

Legal will check the evidence received and if 
correct will enter on AIMS that the invoice is 
now being managed by Legal.  Proof of 
address is obtained and a Pre-Action Protocol 
Letter is sent giving 7 days to pay. 
 

10 working 
days 

8th Day after 
Pre-Action 
Protocol Letter 
sent 
 

Legal to issue Court Proceedings, if no contact 
has been made by the debtor.  

10 working 
days 

Day 15 after 
issue of 
proceedings 

If no response is made by the debtor.  Legal 
will obtain Judgment. 

10 working 
days 

Once 
Judgment is 
obtained 

Legal will take the appropriate action to 
recover the debt through discussions with the 
originating service where necessary. 

10 working 
days 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



 Write Off Policy for Sundry Debts  Appendix C 

Page 16 of 17 

1. General 

1.1 It is Epping Forest District Council’s aim to collect all outstanding 
charges from debtors wherever possible, provided that it is cost 
effective.  However, this may not be possible due to the 
circumstances of some cases, these are listed below. 

  

2. Purpose of this Policy 

2.1 To describe the circumstances and authorisations when debts are 
considered as non-recoverable. 

  

3. Types of Debts not covered by the Policy: 

3.1 a) Council Tax; 
b) National Non-Domestic Rates; 
c) Housing Rents; 
d) Housing and Council Tax Benefits Overpayments; and 
e) Parking penalties 

  

4. Circumstances where the debt may be non-recoverable 

4.1 a) Debtor has absconded and cannot be traced; 
b) Debtor / company is insolvent i.e. Bankruptcy, Liquidation and 

Administrative Receivership cases; 
c) Debtor deceased and there is no estate; 
d) Debts where all or part has been remitted by the Magistrates 

Courts due to hardship; 
e) Small debts under £10 and other small non-recurring debts 

which are uneconomical to collect; 
f) Debts where a company has ceased to trade leaving no 

assets; 

4.2 In some cases further action may be required before the amount is 
written off, such as referring the debt to a Tracing Agency 

  

5. Write Off and Reporting 

5.1 Where any of the above criteria are satisfied then the balance 
outstanding will be considered for write off. 

Page 62



 Write Off Policy for Sundry Debts  Appendix C 

Page 17 of 17 

5.2 The service that raised the debt will need to request the write off, 
providing the following information and signed by the delegated 
person detailed on the authorised signatories list: 
 

a) Name of Debtor; 
b) Reason for the write off; 
c) Amount to be written off; 
d) Recovery history; 
e) Details of any traces / enquiries carried out; or 
f) Agreement by Legal Services 
g) Any other relevant information. 

5.3 A write off list will be submitted and reconciled every 3 months by the 
Senior Finance Officer. 

5.4 The Director of Finance & ICT has delegated power to write off 
individual debts of up to £1,000. 

5.5 The Finance, Performance Management and Corporate Support 
Services Portfolio Holder must approve the writing off of any debt in 
excess of £1,000. 

5.6 Should a debtor be traced then the debt will be re-instated to enable 
recovery action to continue. 

 
 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



Report to the Finance and Performance 
Management Cabinet Committee 
 
Date of meeting:  17 March 2008. 
 
 
Portfolio:  Finance, Performance Management & Corporate Support Services. 
 
Subject:  Local Housing Allowance. 
 
Responsible Officer:   Janet Twinn  (01992-564215). 
                                                                        
Democratic Services Officer: Gary Woodhall (01992-564470). 
 
Recommendations/Decisions Required: 
 

(1) To note the introduction of the Local Housing Allowance and the 
potential impact on residents; and  
 
(2) To consider the attached Vulnerability and Direct Payment Policy and 
recommend it to Cabinet for approval.  

 
Introduction: 
 
1. Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit are means tested benefit schemes which 
assist with the payment of rent and Council Tax. The schemes are statutory and are 
administered by Local Authorities on behalf of the Department of Work and Pensions. In the 
Epping Forest District, there are currently just over 8000 claimants and in 2007/08 it is 
expected that a total of over £32m will be paid. The majority of this cost is claimed back from 
the Government.  

 
Local Housing Allowance: 

 
2. The Local Housing Allowance (LHA) is a new way of calculating and paying Housing 
Benefit and it is being introduced nationally from April 2008. This new scheme applies only to 
tenants renting accommodation from private landlords who make a claim for Housing Benefit 
on or after 7 April 2008. At present, it will not apply to council tenants, tenants of Registered 
Social Landlords or people living in mobile homes or houseboats, although there is the 
possibility that the scheme will be introduced in these areas in the future.  People currently in 
receipt of Housing Benefit will continue to have their Housing Benefit calculated in 
accordance with the existing scheme whilst they continue to live in the same property and do 
not have a break in their Housing Benefit entitlement.  
 
3. The scheme has been introduced as a way of making tenants more responsible for 
their choice of accommodation and managing their own finances. Under the new scheme, 
claimants will have their LHA entitlement assessed on the average rent level for the size of 
accommodation that the size of their household requires. This level will be set at a fixed rate 
and everybody living in the same area, with the same size of household, will have their LHA 
calculated using the same fixed rate. If a claimants rent liability is lower than the fixed rate, 
they will still be able to receive the fixed rate of LHA and keep the difference, up to a 
maximum amount of £15.00 per week. The LHA rates will reviewed by the Rent Service each 
month and published in appropriate places such as the website and to third parties such as 
the Housing Service, CAB and local Letting Agents. A prospective tenant can therefore 
determine in advance the amount of help towards their rent that they can receive and either 

Agenda Item 10

Page 65



assesses how they can pay any shortfall themselves, negotiate with the landlord accordingly 
or look for alternative more affordable accommodation. 
 
4. At present, the claimant can choose whether to have their Housing Benefit paid to 
themselves or their landlord unless they are more than 8 weeks in arrears with their rent. 
However, under the LHA, the claimants have no choice and will receive their payments 
direct. The LHA will only be paid to the landlord if the claimant is ‘vulnerable’ (ie not able to 
manage their own finances), or if the tenant has more than 8 weeks rent arrears.  
 
5. Under the present Housing Benefit scheme, the Rent Service has to provide rent 
decisions for each private sector benefit claim. These are based on the rent that the landlord 
could expect from the property and the average rent levels in the area for the appropriate 
size accommodation for the claimant. The LHA scheme still requires The Rent Service to 
continually survey the local area to establish average rent levels for different size 
accommodation. As a consequence of the introduction of the LHA, The Rent Service decided 
that they would review the localities that they use for assessing average rent levels. 
Nationally, they have reduced the number of localities and have established large ‘Broad 
Rental Market Areas’ (BRMA’s). The LHA rates are then set using the average rent levels in 
each of these BRMA’s.  
 
6. There are 3 BRMA’s affecting the Epping Forest District and therefore 3 different LHA 
rates for tenants depending on where they live in the District. As a basic guide, properties 
south of the M25 will be included in the Outer North East (London) BRMA. This BRMA 
includes Chingford, Woodford, Ilford, Barking, Dagenham and Hornchurch. Everything north 
of the M25 (except Waltham Abbey) has been included in a Harlow & Stortford BRMA. This 
BRMA includes Harlow, Bishops Stortford and a large rural area extending to just south of 
Saffron Walden and just west of Braintree. Waltham Abbey has been included in a South 
East Herts BRMA which includes Hoddesdon, Ware, Hertford, Welwyn Garden City and 
Hatfield. As a result of this review of the rent localities, the average rent levels within the 
Epping Forest District have reduced quite significantly in each of the 3 BRMA’s.      
 
7. The LHA has already been introduced quite successfully in 9 Pathfinder Local 
Authorities, although tenants generally benefited from the new scheme and rent levels did 
not reduce. Nationally, it is predicted that there will be more ‘winners’ from the scheme than 
‘losers’ but unfortunately the Epping Forest District is an area that will be affected overall by 
lower rent levels. Although the LHA does not commence until April, we have received the 
LHA rates for March to give an indication of the expected levels. These figures are shown in 
Appendix A. 
 
8. An unforeseen consequence of this review is that although existing Benefit claimants 
are not affected by the LHA, they have been affected by the rent review. Under the current 
scheme, we have to refer the rent for each Housing Benefit claim to the Rent Service and we 
are given a decision that is valid for 52 weeks, after which we have to obtain a new decision 
from the Rent Service. Each decision has a ‘Local Reference Rent’ figure and it is either this 
figure or the rental valuation of the property itself that is used to assess Housing Benefit 
entitlement. Since the BRMA’s have been established, we have been receiving decisions on 
existing claims using average rent levels within the larger BRMA’s, rather than the former 
smaller localities. There have already been some significant decreases in Housing Benefit 
entitlement for existing claims, some as much as £100.00 per month. There is no warning 
that can be given, nor any transitional protection as the new decision applies with immediate 
effect.  
 
9. The Rent Service has provided information to authorities on ‘winners’ and ‘losers’ for 
existing claimants. They have looked at all the rent referrals in the last year and have 
determined whether rent levels will decrease or increase as a result of the rent review. A 
summary of how the Epping Forest District and the surrounding Local Authorities have been 
affected is shown in Appendix B. It can be seen from this chart that we are going to be 

Page 66



significantly affected by the rent review, whilst other surrounding authorities will actually see 
increases in their rents. The area with the most tenants affected is Waltham Abbey with an 
overall 57.2% of tenants facing a decrease, the majority of the decreases being £5.00 - 
£10.00 per week. However, Epping has the problem that the majority of the decreases are 
£20.00 - £25.00 per week.  
 
10. The Housing Benefit scheme and the Local Housing Allowance are statutory 
schemes for the authority and we have no choice but to operate these schemes. Similarly, 
we have no control over any Rent Service decision. We have previously made 
representations to the Rent Service about the BRMA’s with limited success, but in view of the 
criteria that the Rent Service have to use, it is difficult to object to their decisions. The only 
method of challenging the Rent Service is by judicial review. The Department for Work and 
Pensions are also aware that the Council is concerned at the number of people adversely 
affected. However, the Council is in the minority of authorities that are looking at significant 
numbers and amounts of decreases and therefore cannot expect any changes to now be 
made.  
 
Vulnerability and Direct Payment Policy: 
 
11. The LHA will be paid directly to claimants but it is recognised that there will be some 
claimants who will be unable/unlikely to pay their rent to their landlord. Provision has 
therefore been made for these circumstances within the LHA scheme. In order to help 
claimants be responsible for their own finances whilst protecting the interests of vulnerable 
claimants and landlords, it is necessary to put in place a policy for determining when direct 
payments to landlords would be appropriate.  

 
12. The main points of the policy set out the criteria for identifying potentially vulnerable 
claimants and the decision making process. The Policy is attached at Appendix C. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
13. It is anticipated that the LHA will cause considerable short term difficulties for some 
residents and Members are asked to note the information provided in the report. To allow 
officers to implement the LHA efficiently and objectively a policy for direct payments is 
required and Members are asked to recommend the attached policy to Cabinet for approval. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



LH
A

 ra
te

s 
– 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

A
 

  Lo
ca

lit
y 

 
R

oo
m

 
 

1 
be

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 

 
2 

be
d 

pr
op

er
ty

 
 

3 
be

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 

 
4 

be
d 

pr
op

er
ty

 
 

5 
be

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 

  H
ar

lo
w

 &
 

S
to

rtf
or

d 

  
£6

9.
00

 p
w

 
 

£2
99

 p
cm

 
  

  
£1

26
.9

2 
pw

 
 

£5
49

.9
9 

pc
m

 

  
£1

61
.5

4 
pw

 
 

£7
00

.0
1 

pc
m

 

  
£1

90
.3

8 
pw

 
 

£8
24

.9
8 

pc
m

 

  
£3

11
.5

4 
pw

 
 

£1
35

0.
01

 p
cm

 

  
£3

46
.1

5 
pw

 
 

£1
49

9.
98

 p
cm

 

  S
ou

th
 E

as
t 

H
er

ts
 

  
£7

7.
31

 p
w

 
 

£3
35

.0
1 

pc
m

 
  

  
£1

37
.3

1 
pw

 
 

£5
95

.0
1 

pc
m

 

  
£1

73
.0

8 
pw

 
 

£7
50

.0
1 

pc
m

 

  
£1

96
.1

5 
pw

 
 

£8
49

.9
8 

pc
m

 

  
£2

88
.4

6 
pw

 
 

£1
24

9.
99

 p
cm

 

  
£3

02
.8

9 
pw

 
 

£1
31

2.
52

 p
cm

 

  O
ut

er
 N

or
th

 
E

as
t L

on
do

n 

  
£8

5.
38

 p
w

 
 

£3
69

.9
8 

pc
m

 
  

  
£1

50
.0

0 
pw

 
 

£6
50

.0
0 

pc
m

 

  
£1

84
.6

2 
pw

 
 

£8
00

.0
2 

pc
m

 

  
£2

29
.8

1 
pw

 
 

£9
95

.8
4 

pc
m

 

  
£3

11
.5

4 
pw

 
 

£1
35

0.
01

 p
cm

 

  
£4

15
.3

8 
pw

 
 

£1
79

9.
98

 p
cm

 

Page 68



C
la

im
an

ts
 w

ith
 d

ec
re

as
ed

 e
nt

itl
em

en
t a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

re
nt

 re
vi

ew
 

 
 

 
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
B

 
 O

ve
ra

ll 
re

su
lts

 fo
r L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

  Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
To

ta
l r

ef
er

ra
ls

 o
ve

r 
12

 m
on

th
s 

 
N

o 
ch

an
ge

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

en
tit

le
m

en
t 

D
ec

re
as

ed
 

en
tit

le
m

en
t 

D
ec

re
as

ed
 

en
tit

le
m

en
t a

s 
%

 o
f 

cl
ai

m
an

ts
 

E
pp

in
g 

Fo
re

st
  

 
12

94
 

70
9 

95
 

49
0 

37
.9

%
 

H
ar

lo
w

  
 

89
4 

68
3 

20
6 

5 
0.

6%
 

B
ro

xb
ou

rn
e 

 
 

13
99

 
85

7 
37

2 
17

0 
12

.2
%

 

E
as

t H
er

ts
  

 
98

6 
57

5 
28

0 
13

1 
13

.3
%

 

B
re

nt
w

oo
d 

 
 

58
8 

38
9 

1 
19

8 
33

.7
%

 

W
al

th
am

 F
or

es
t 

 
80

56
 

68
17

 
12

39
 

0 
0.

0%
 

R
ed

br
id

ge
 

 
68

83
 

32
83

 
35

81
 

19
 

0.
3%

 

H
av

er
in

g 
 

30
23

 
20

93
 

93
0 

0 
0.

0%
 

  B
R

M
A

’s
 in

 th
e 

Ep
pi

ng
 F

or
es

t D
is

tr
ic

t 
   B

R
M

A
 

To
ta

l r
ef

er
ra

ls
 o

ve
r 

12
 m

on
th

s 
 

N
o 

ch
an

ge
 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
en

tit
le

m
en

t 
D

ec
re

as
ed

 
en

tit
le

m
en

t 

D
ec

re
as

ed
 

en
tit

le
m

en
t a

s 
%

 o
f 

cl
ai

m
an

ts
 

S
ou

th
 E

as
t H

er
ts

 
 

26
4 

11
3 

0 
15

1 
57

.2
%

 

H
ar

lo
w

 &
 S

to
rtf

or
d 

 
32

4 
14

1 
27

 
15

6 
48

.1
%

 

O
ut

er
 N

or
th

 E
as

t 
Lo

nd
on

 
 

70
6 

45
5 

68
 

18
3 

25
.9

%
 

  

Page 69



Page 70



Appendix C 
 
 
 
 

Local Housing Allowance 
 

 
 
 
 

Vulnerability and Direct  
Payment  Policy  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Page 71



Introduction 
 
Local Housing Allowance (LHA) legislation prescribes that claim payments must be paid directly to 
the claimant (tenant), rather than the landlord. Tenants can no longer choose to have their benefit 
paid directly to their landlord but, in certain circumstances where the tenant is not able to manage 
their financial affairs, payment can still be made to landlords. Generally, this may be where the 
claimant is either considered to be ‘vulnerable’ or they owe rent arrears of eight weeks or more. 
 
The aim of this policy is to: 

• Provide a safeguard to the most vulnerable tenants and reassure them that their benefit 
and rent will be paid. 

• Prevent rent arrears and tenants being put at risk of eviction. 
• Reassure landlords that their rent will be paid if they have vulnerable tenants or are 

approached by vulnerable tenants. 
• Make reasonable, fair and consistent decisions. 
• Treat each case individually and not make assumptions about people’s situations.  

 
The policy is not designed to: 

• Replace support that is being received to allow tenants the opportunity to be responsible 
tenants and to be in control of their income and expenditure. 

• Be a blanket policy for agencies providing support to private tenants. 
• Be used by landlords to circumvent the aims of the LHA. 
• Undermine the rights of tenants to receive payments themselves. 

 
 
 

Vulnerable Claimants 
 
The Council has the discretion to pay the landlord directly where it considers the claimant is likely 
to have difficulty managing his or her affairs. 
 
People who should not be considered as vulnerable 
 
• People who have been appointed to act on behalf of a claimant who is ‘unable for the time 

being to act for themselves’ and 
 
• The claimants they act for, until such time as they cease to have an appointee acting for 

them. 
 
Identifying potentially vulnerable claimants 
 
We may receive requests for consideration from the claimant, landlord or a third party such as 
DWP, Social Services, GP, friend or family member. The request should be made in writing and 
include supporting documentary evidence. If the request comes from anyone other than the 
claimant we must contact the claimant either by phone, or preferably by conducting an interview, to 
find out what his or her issues are.   
 
We will only respond to the landlord or third party if there is written consent from the claimant to do 
so. If no consent is given, then the third party should be told that we will investigate the matter and 
contact the claimant. 
 

Page 72



There are two indicators to consider when trying to identify vulnerable claimants – the cause and 
the effect. It is necessary to consider either or both when trying to establish vulnerability, although 
a claimant is not automatically vulnerable because they match one of the indicators. 
 
Causes 
 
Each case must be considered on its own merits when making a decision on vulnerability, taking 
into account any supporting evidence. Many circumstances may affect a person’s ability to manage 
his or her financial affairs. For example; 
 
• Learning Disabilities – These can range from mild to severe. In more severe cases, the 

claimant is likely to have an appointee to act on his or her behalf, in which case a decision 
not to pay the landlord should be made. 

 
• Medical Conditions – Those which seriously impair someone from managing his or her 

affairs on a day-to-day basis, e.g. mental illness (schizophrenia, Alzheimer’s, senile 
dementia). However, again, there may be an appointee acting on a claimant’s behalf in most 
of these situations. 

 
• Illiteracy or an inability to speak English. 
 
• Addiction to drugs, alcohol or gambling. 
 
• Fleeing domestic violence; single homeless (care leavers); people leaving prison. 
 
 
 
Cause – examples of evidence required 
 

Description Examples of evidence required 

Learning Disability Written evidence from GP, Social Services, 
Care Workers, DWP, etc. 

Medical Condition Written evidence from GP, Social Services, 
Care Workers, hospital, etc. 

Illiteracy / Inability to speak English Written evidence from support 
organisations, etc. 

Addiction to drugs / alcohol / gambling Written evidence from support 
organisations, etc. 

Fleeing domestic violence / single 
homeless / leaving prison 

Written evidence from support 
organisations, probationary service, social 
services, etc. 

 
 
Effects 
 
The effects of vulnerability can illustrate quite clearly the inability of a claimant to manage his or her 
own affairs. Some examples are; 
 

• Severe debt problems / recent County Court Judgements. 

Page 73



 
• Undischarged Bankrupt. 

 
• Inability to obtain a bank account – in practice everyone should be able to obtain a basic 

bank account at one of the High Street banks or building societies. 
 

• DWP making deductions from IS/JSA IB to pay utility companies directly to clear 
outstanding arrears – should only be considered if part of the debt is still outstanding. 

 
• In receipt of help from Supporting People (SP). 

 
• In receipt of help from a homeless charity. 

 
Effect – examples of evidence required 
 

Description Examples of evidence required 

Severe debt problems / recent CCJ’s Evidence from help groups, creditors, 
court orders, solicitors, etc. 

Undischarged bankrupt Copy of court order. 

Inability to open a bank account Letters from banks or money advisers. 

DWP making payments of IS / JSA direct 
to utility companies with outstanding 
arrears 

Only consider if there is evidence that 
part of the debt is still outstanding. 

In receipt of Supporting People help Evidence from social services and 
support providers. 

In receipt of help from a homeless charity Evidence from the homeless charity 

 
 
If the claimant fails to provide the information / evidence required, this may in itself demonstrate 
vulnerability, especially when coupled with another factor. 
 
 
Tenants with rent arrears of eight weeks or more 
 
Claim payments will be made direct to the landlord where the tenant has built up rent arrears of 
eight weeks or more. The landlord will have to provide documented evidence of rent arrears and 
any recovery action taken. The Council may decide to continue paying the landlord even after the 
arrears have fallen below eight weeks. 
 

Page 74



 
Making a Decision 

 
It is important to note that just because a claimant falls into one or more of the above categories, 
this does not necessarily mean he or she is ‘vulnerable’. Each case must be treated on its own 
merit, based on the information and evidence collected. In some circumstances it may be 
appropriate to conduct an interview with the claimant, or at the very least a telephone call could be 
used in addition to paper evidence prior to making a final decision.  
 
Information received from a non-independent source, such as landlord, friend or family member, 
does not carry as much weight as that received from an independent source, and should therefore 
be viewed only in support of other evidence. 
 
To ensure consistency with the decision-making, information and evidence should always be 
obtained, and the judgement on whether to treat a claimant as vulnerable and to therefore make 
payment directly to the landlord will be the responsibility of a senior officer. 
 
A report will be written for all decisions stating what information / evidence was taken into account 
and why it resulted in direct payment being granted or refused. This will assist with reviews of the 
decision and potential appeals.  
 
 

Reviewing the Decision 
 
Two types of review can take place; 
 

1. An appeal from a relevant person (the rules for appealing are the same as the rules for 
Housing Benefit). 

 
2. A review of the claimant’s circumstances, to establish whether the ‘vulnerable’ decision is 

still appropriate. 
 

The decision to treat a claimant as ‘vulnerable’ will be reviewed after an appropriate period of time 
as decided by the Council. 

 
 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2008/09
	7 Third Quarter Financial Monitoring Report 2007/08
	Q3 Financial Monitoring App I - IX
	Q3 Financial Monitoring App X - XV

	8 Risk Management - Updated Corporate Risk Register
	Updated Risk Regstr App I

	9 Sundry Debtors - Policy & Performance
	Sundry Debtors App I

	10 Local Housing Allowance

